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NOTICE OF 50th (FIFTIETH) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING  

Notice is hereby given that the 50th (Fiftieth) Annual General Meeting of 

Indu Engineering and Textiles Limited will be held at Registered Office of the Company situated at 

12/16-A Nawal Ganj, Nunhai, Agra- 282006 on Friday, 30th September, 2022 at 3.30 P.M., to transact 

the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESSES: 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Profit 

& Loss Account of the Company for the financial year ended on that date and the Reports of 

the Auditors and Directors thereon. 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Pramod Kumar Agarwal (DIN: 01469533), who retires 

by rotation at this meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

 

 

 

 

 
By Order of the Board 

For Indu Engineering and Textiles Limited 

 

 
 

 

Place: Agra                                              Pramod Kumar Agarwal 
Date:  3rd September, 2022                      Managing Director 

                                                                                                                  DIN: 01469533 

R/o D-63, Kamla Nagar, AGRA 282005 UP IN 
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NOTES: 

1. Members holding shares in physical forms are requested to consider converting their holding 

to dematerialized form to eliminate all risk associated with physical shares and for ease in 

portfolio management. Member can contact the Company or the Company’s Registrar and 

Transfer Agent, Beetal Financial & Computer Services Private Limited, for assistance in this 

regard. 

2. In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holders who are higher in the 

order of names will be entitled to vote. 

3. Members who hold shares in physical form can nominate a person in respect of all the shares 

held by them singly or jointly. Members holding shares in single name are advised, in their 

own interest to avail of the nomination facility by filling form 2B. Members holding shares in 

the dematerialized form may contact their depository Participant for recording nomination in 

form may contact their depository Participant for recording nomination in respect of their 

shares. 

4. Members holding shares under multiple folios in identical order of names are requested to 

consolidate their holdings into one folio. 

5. The Securities  and  Exchange  Board  of  India  (SEBI)  has  mandated  the submission  of  

Permanent  Account  Number  (PAN)  by  every  participant  in  securities  market. Members 

holding shares in electronic form are therefore requested to submit their PAN to their 

Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members 

holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN to the Company/Registrar & Share 

Transfer Agent. 

6. Pursuant to Section 101 and Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant Rules 

made there under, Companies can serve Annual Reports & other communications through 

electronic mode to those members whose email IDs are registered with the 

Company/Depository Participants(s). As per provisions of Section 20 of the Companies Act, 

2013 read with Rules there under, a document may be served on any member by sending it to 

him/her by post or by registered post or by speed post or by courier or by delivering at his/her 

office/home address or by such electronic mode as may be prescribed including by facsimile 

telecommunication or to electronic mail address, which the member has provided to his/her 

Depository Participants(s)/Company Share Transfer Agent from time to time for sending 

communications, provided that a member may request for delivery of any document through a 

particular mode, for which he/she shall pay such fees as may be determined by the Company 

in its Annual General Meeting. For members who have not registered their email address with 

the Company, the service of documents will be affected by other modes of services as 

provided in Section 20 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the relevant Rules there under. 

Printed copies of the Notice of the Annual General Meeting of the Company inter alia 

indicating the process and manner of e-voting along with Attendance Slip, Ballot Paper and 
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Proxy Form is being sent to all members in the permitted mode. 

7. Members may also note that the Notice of the Annual General Meeting and the Annual Report 

2022 will also be available on the Company’s website www.induengineering.com for their 

download. The physical copies of the aforesaid documents will also be available at the 

Company’s Registered Office for inspection during normal business hours on working days. 

Even after registering for e-communication, members are entitled to receive such 

communication in physical form, upon making a request for the same, free of cost. For any 

communication, the shareholders may also send requests to the Company’s designated email 

id: induagracs@gmail.com and induengg.agra@gmail.com  

8. Members can opt for one mode of voting i.e. either by physical ballot or through e-voting. If 

Members opt for e-voting then do not vote by Physical Ballot or vice versa. However, in case 

Members cast their vote both by Physical Ballot and e-voting, then voting done through e-

voting shall prevail and voting done by Physical Ballot will be treated as invalid. 

9. In terms of Regulation 44 of the (LODR) Regulation, 2015, in order to enable its members, 

who do not have access to e-voting facility, to send their assent or dissent in writing in respect 

of the resolutions as set out in this Notice, a Ballot Form is attached. Members desiring to 

exercise vote by Ballot are requested to carefully read the instructions printed in the form, to 

complete the Ballot Form with assent (for) or dissent (against) and send it to Mr. Anuj 

Ashok, Scrutinizer, 41, Jaipur House Market, Agra, 282010, Tel.: 0562-4008598, Mobile: 

9319215839, Email: anujashokcs@gmail.com so as to reach him on or before Friday, 

September 30, 2022 by 10.00 A.M. Any Ballot Form received after the said date shall be 

treated as if the reply from the Members has not been received. 

10. Members can request for a Ballot Form at INDU ENGINEERING AND TEXTILES 

LIMITED, 12/16-A Nawal Ganj, Nunhai, Agra-282006 or they may also address their request 

through E-mail to: induagracs@gmail.com and induengg.agra@gmail.com, Contact No.: +91-

+91-7976568943. 

 

11. The E-voting period for all items of business contained in this Notice shall commence from 

Tuesday 27th September, 2022 at 9.00 a.m. and will end on Thursday, the 29th September, 

2022 at 5.00 p.m. During this period equity shareholders of the Company holding shares 

either in physical form or in dematerialized form as on the cutoff date of September 23, 2022, 

may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting 

thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by any Member, he/she shall not be allowed to 

change it subsequently.  

12. The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their equity shareholding in the paid up 

equity share capital of the Company as on September 23, 2022. 

13. Mr. Anuj Ashok, Practicing Company Secretaries (Membership No. FCS 5469) an 

Independent Professional has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to Scrutinize the E-voting 

process in a fair and transparent manner (including the Ballot Form received from the members 

who do not have access to the e-voting process) in a fair and transparent manner. 

http://www.induengineering.com/
mailto:induagracs@gmail.com
mailto:induengg.agra@gmail.com
mailto:anujashokcs@gmail.com
mailto:induagracs@gmail.com
mailto:induengg.agra@gmail.com
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14. The Results of E-voting shall be declared at the AGM of the Company and the results along 

with Scrutinizer’s report shall be placed on the website of the Company thereafter and shall 

also be communicated to the Stock Exchanges. The Resolutions shall be deemed to be passed, 

if approved, on the date of AGM. 

15. The Scrutinizer shall immediately after the conclusion of voting at the meeting, first count the 

votes casted at the meeting, thereafter unblock the votes casted through remote e-voting in the 

presence of at least 2 witnesses not in the employment of the Company and make, not later 

than 3 days of conclusion of the meeting and after scrutinizing such votes received shall make 

a Scrutinizer’s report of the votes cast in favor or against or invalid votes in connection with 

the resolution(s) mentioned in the Notice of the Meeting and submit the same forthwith to the 

Chairman of the Company. 

 

THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING  

(i) The voting period begins on Tuesday 27th September, 2022 at 9.00 a.m. and will end on Thursday, 

the 29th September, 2022. During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either 

in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date 23rd September, 2022 may cast 

their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. 

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote 

at the meeting venue. 

(iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under 

Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to 

its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been observed that the 

participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible 

level.  

 

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to 

listed entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of 

multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.  

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it 

has been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single 

login credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository 

Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to 

register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also 

enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process.  

(iv) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-

Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 

mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository 
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Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat 

accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 

Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for 

Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below: 

Type of 

shareholders 

 Login Method 

 

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding 

securities in 

Demat mode 

with CDSL 

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through 

their existing user id and password. Option will be made available to 

reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for 

users to login to Easi / Easiest are 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit  

www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System 

Myeasi. 

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-

Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as 

per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting 

option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service 

provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 

joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there 

is also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service 

Providers i.e. CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can 

visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly. 

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available 

at https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration 

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing 

Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on 

 www.cdslindia.com home page or click on 

https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin The system will 

authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as 

recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will 

be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and 

also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login
http://www.cdslindia.com/
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration
http://www.cdslindia.com/
https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin
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Individual 

Shareholders 

holding 

securities in 

demat mode 

with NSDL 

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services 

website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once 

the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon 

under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will 

open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful 

authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-

Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click 

on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed 

to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-

Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

2) If the user is not  registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available 

at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click   

at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 

URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a 

mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon 

“Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen 

will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat 

account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as 

shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to 

NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company 

name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting 

service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period 

or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting 

Individual 

Shareholders 

(holding 

securities in 

demat mode) 

login through 

their 

Depository 

Participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 

through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-

Voting facility.  After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting 

option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to 

NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you 

can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service 

provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider 

website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 

joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

  

 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget 

User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues 

related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in Demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at 

022- 23058738 and 22-23058542-43. 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in Demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 

contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 

evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 

1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30   

 

(v) Login method for Remote e-Voting for Physical shareholders and shareholders other than 

individual holding in Demat form. 

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com. 

2) Click on “Shareholders” module. 

3) Now enter your User ID  
a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,  

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,  

c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered 
with the Company. 

4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 

5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and 

voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.  
6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below: 

 For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding 

shares in Demat. 

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department 
(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 

 Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the 
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the sequence 

number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA. 

Dividend 
Bank 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as 
recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to login. 

mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
http://www.evotingindia.com/
http://www.evotingindia.com/
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Details 

 OR Date 

of Birth 
(DOB) 

 If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, 

please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details 

field. 

 

(vi) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 

(vii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. 
However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu 

wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly 

note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other 
company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL 

platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take 

utmost care to keep your password confidential. 

(viii) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the 
resolutions contained in this Notice. 

(ix) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote. 

(x) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option 
“YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you 

assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution. 

(xi) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 
(xii) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box 

will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, 

click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote. 

(xiii) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 
(xiv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting 

page. 

(xv) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image 
verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system. 

(xvi) Additional Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians –For Remote Voting only. 

 Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are 

required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” 
module. 

 A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be 

emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

 After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login 

and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish 

to vote on. 

 The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com 
and on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.  

 A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have 

issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for 

the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

 Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ 
Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who 

http://www.evotingindia.com/
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
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are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; 

induagracs@gmail.com (designated email address by company), if they have voted from individual 
tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

 

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NUMBERS ARE 

NOT REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES. 

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of 

shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned 

copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to 

Company/RTA email id. 

2. For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective 

Depository Participant (DP)  

3. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with your 

respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual 

meetings through Depository. 

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting 

System, you can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 and 

022-23058542/43. 

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. 

Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th 

Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 

400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call  on 022-23058542/43. 

By Order of the Board 

For Indu Engineering and Textiles Limited 
 

 

 

Place: Agra                                 Pramod Kumar Agarwal 
Date:  3rd September, 2022                                                         Managing Director 

                     DIN: 01469533 

R/o D-63, Kamla Nagar, AGRA 282005 UP IN 
 

mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

Your Directors are pleased to present their Annual Report on the Business and operations of the Company 

together with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2022. 

1. Financial Results 

The financial performance of your Company for the year ended March 31, 2022 is summarized 

below:   

(in Rs.) 

Particulars  2021-22 2020-21 

Net Sales/ Income from Business Operations   14,85,53,462.34 12,32,25,439.44 

Other Income  3,92,972.80 6,87,485.44 

Total Income  14,89,46,435.14 12,39,12,924.88 

Less Expenses 14,79,82,361.20 12,67,11,638.55 

Profit/ Loss before Tax and extraordinary items  9,64,073.94 (27,98,713.67) 

Less Extra ordinary/ Exceptional items   - - 

Profit before tax 9,64,073.94 (27,98,713.67) 

Provision for Current Income Tax 25,490.00 - 

Less Previous year adjustment of Income Tax - - 

Provision for Deferred Tax  4,42,026.17 23,08,447.82 

Interest on Tax - - 

Net Profit after Tax 9,64,073.94 (27,98,713.67) 

Earnings per share (Basic) NA (0.54) 

Earnings per share (Diluted)  NA (0.54) 
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2. Future Outlook: 

Our Company is currently focusing its resources in the business segments of 

manufacturer/exporter/wholesale dealer of all kinds and forms of steels, iron, Metals, iron casting grey iron, 

s.g.iron, diesel engine, pump sets, all type of graded castings, auto parts brake drum, cylinder, centrifugal 

pumps, etc.  

3. Dividend: 

The Company has not proposed any interim dividend or final dividend for the year.  

4. Share Capital: 

Paid-up Equity Capital of the Company as on 31.03.2022 is Rs.5,14,52,900/-. The Company has 

not issued any new equity shares during the year. 

5. Acceptance of Deposits: 

The Company has not accepted any Deposits from general public within the purview of Section 73 of 

the Companies Act, 2013, during the year under review. 

 

6. Review of Operations: 

During the year under review, the Company achieved a turnover of Rs. 1,485.53 Lakh (previous year 

Rs. 1232.25 Lakh) the Company has made profit of Rs. 9.64 Lakh (previous year there was loss of Rs. 

27 Lakh).  

7.  Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates Companies: 

 

The Company does not have any subsidiaries, joint venture & associates Company. 
 

8. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

The Company has formulated a policy on director’s appointment & remuneration including criteria for 

determining qualifications, positive attributes independence of director & other matters as provided 

under section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 & such policy is annexed with the Director Report. 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies act 2013 and Regulation 17 to 27 of the SEBI (LODR), 

2015, evaluation of every Directors performance was done by the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee. The performance evaluation of the Non – Independent Directors and the Board as a whole, 

committees thereof and the chair person of the company was carried out by the Independent Directors. 

Evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board of Directors, excluding the 

Directors being evaluated. A structured questionnaire was prepared after circulating the draft norms, 

covering various aspects of the evaluation such as adequacy  of the size and composition of the Board 

and Committee thereof with regard to skill, experience, independence, diversity, attendance and 

adequacy of time given by the directors to discharge their duties, Corporate Governance practices etc. 

The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process. 

The following policies of the company are attached herewith and marked as Annexure 1, Annexure 2A 

and Annexure 2B. 
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Policy on appointment of Directors and Senior Management (Annexure 1) 

Policy on Remuneration to Directors’ (Annexure 2A) 

Policy on Remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel and Employees (Annexure 2B)  

 

 

9. Familiarization Programme arranged for Independent Directors 

The details of familiarization programme for Independent Directors have been disclosed on website of 

the Company. 

 

10. Extract of Annual Return 

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12(1) of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules 2014, the extract of annual return is annexed herewith and 

forming part of the report. (Annexure – I) 

 

11. Directors Responsibility Statement: 

In terms of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company hereby 

confirms that: 

i. In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022 the applicable 

accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures. 

ii. The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state 

of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for 

the year ended 31st March, 2022. 

iii. The Directors have taken sufficient and proper care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records 

in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the 

Company and for preventing and detecting material fraud and other irregularities.  

iv. The Directors have prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis. 

v. There are proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 

laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

vi. That the Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that 

such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively. 

 

12. Statement of Declarations given by Independent Director under section 149(7) of the Companies 

Act, 2013: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Sub-Section (7) of Section 149 of the Companies Act 2013, the Company 

has received individual declarations from all the Independent Directors confirming that they fulfill the 

criteria of independence as specified in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act 2013. As per Section 149 

of the Companies Act, 2013, independent directors shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive 

years on the board of a company, but shall be eligible for re-appointment for another term up to five 

years on passing of a special resolution by the company and disclosure of such appointment in Board's 

Report. Further Section 152 of the Act provides that the independent directors shall not be liable to 

retire by rotation in the Annual General Meeting ('AGM') of the Company. 
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As per Regulation 27(2) of the SEBI (LODR), 2015, any person who has already served as independent 

director for five years or more in a company as on October 1, 2014 shall be eligible for appointment, on 

completion of the present term, for one more term of up to 5 (five) years only. 

 

13. Particulars of Employee and Information called for under section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 

and the Companies(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014: 

None of the employees of the Company is in receipt of remuneration prescribed under Section 197(12) 

of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975. Thus 

furnishing of particulars under the Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules 1975 does not arise. 

 

14. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorptions and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo: 

 

The particulars as required under section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) 

of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 with regard to conservation of energy, technology 

absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgoing are as follows during the year under review. There 

was an amount of foreign exchange earnings or outgo during the year under review. 

 

(A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY  

The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy NA 

The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of Energy NA 

The capital investment on energy conservation equipments NA 

(B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION  

The efforts made towards technology absorption NA 

The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or 

import substitution 

 

NA 

In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the 

beginning of the financial year) 

 

NA 

The expenditure incurred on research and development NA 

 

Details of Foreign currency transactions are as follows: 

 

a. The company has earned income in Foreign Currency during the year.  

b. The company has not incurred any expenditure in Foreign Currency.  

PARTICULARS AMOUNT (RS.) 

2021-22 

Earning in foreign exchange NIL 
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15. Loans, Investment and Guarantees by the Company 

 

There is no loan given, investment made, guarantee given or security provided by the Company to any 

entity under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Particulars of Investment made/loan given under 

section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are provided in the financial statement. 

 

16. Particulars of contract or arrangement with related parties referred to in section 188(1) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 

 

The transactions with the Related Parties are at arm’s length basis and these transactions are not of 

material in nature as per Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 15 of the Companies 

(Meeting of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014. The related party transactions are placed before the 

Audit Committee as also the Board for approval. 

 

Related Party Transaction  

 

A) Name of related parties and description of relationship: 

a) related concern  
 (i) A.G. Shares and Securities Limited 

 

b) Key Managerial Personnel  

       Pramod Kumar Agarwal  

       Gaurav Agarwal 

 

 Transaction with Related Parties   

 

Transaction                            Key Management Personnel                            Associates      

Remuneration                              Rs.10,50,000/-                                                Nil  

 

17. Statement indicating Development and Implementation of Risk Management Policy for the 

Company 

During the year, Management of the Company evaluated the existing Risk Management Policy of the 

Company to make it more focused in identifying and prioritizing the risks, role of various executives in 

monitoring & mitigation of risk and reporting process. Its aim is to enhance shareholders value and 

provide an optimum risk-reward tradeoff. The Risk Management Policy has been reviewed and found 

adequate to the requirements of the Company, and approved by the Board. 

 

The Management evaluated various risks and that there is no element of risk identified that may 

threaten the existence of the Company. 
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18.  Corporate Social Responsibility 

The Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 regarding Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is 

not applicable to the Company as the Net Worth, Turnover and Net profit of the Company is below the 

threshold limit prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

19. Number of Meeting of Board of Directors 

The Board of Directors have met 8(eight) times and Independent Directors once during the year ended 

31st March, 2022 in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there 

under. All the Directors actively participated in the meetings and contributed valuable inputs on the 

matters brought before the Board of Directors from time to time. The intervening gap between the 

Meetings was within the period as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

20. Details of Committee of Directors 

Composition of Audit Committee of Directors, Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Directors 

and Stakeholders Relationship/Grievance Committee of Directors, number of meetings held of each 

Committee during the financial year 2021-22  and  meetings  attended  by  each  member  of  the 

Committee as required under the Companies Act, 2013 are provided in Corporate Governance Report 

and forming part of the report. 

 

The recommendation by the Audit Committee as and when made to Board has been accepted by it. 

 

21. Annual Evaluation by the Board of its own performance, its Committees and Individual Directors 

The Board of Directors of the Company has initiated and put in place evaluation of its own 

performance, its committees and individual directors. The result of the evaluation is satisfactory and 

adequate and meets the requirement of the Company. 

 

22. Establishment of Vigil Mechanism 

The Company has a well established Whistle Blower Policy as part of vigil mechanism for directors 

and employees to report concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected frauds or violation of 

company’s code of conduct or ethics policy. This mechanism also provides for adequate safeguard 

against victimization of director(s)/ employee(s) who avail of the mechanism and also provides for 

direct access to the chairman of audit committee. 

 

23. Material Changes and Commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the Company which 

have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial 

statements relate and the date of report 

There are no material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the company which 

have occurred between the end of the financial year and the date of this Report. 

 

24. Details of Significant and Material Orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals 

impacting the going concern status and Company’s operation in Future 

No significant or material orders have been passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting 

the going concern status and company’s operations in future. 
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25. Internal Financial Controls 

The Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements as designed and implemented by 

the Company are adequate. During the year under review, no material or serious observations has been 

received from the Auditor of the Company for inefficiency or inadequacy of such controls. 

 

26. Statutory Auditors & remarks on Auditor’s Report: 

 
The Statutory Auditors  M/s. P S A & Co, Chartered Accountant was appointed for a period of 5(five) 

years in the last Annual General Meeting held on 11th September, 2019 upto the conclusion of 52nd 

Annual General Meeting to be held in calendar year 2024. 

Further, The Auditors Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark or 

disclaimer. Further, the Statutory Auditors have not reported any reported any incident of fraud during 

the year under review to the Audit Committee of your Company. 

 

27. Secretarial Audit Report 

A Secretarial Audit Report for the year ended 31st March, 2022 in prescribed form duly audited by the 

Practicing Company Secretary M/s. Anuj Ashok & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary is 

annexed herewith and forming part of the report. 

 

28. Auditors' Report 

The observations of the Auditors in their report, read with notes annexed to the accounts, are self-

explanatory. 

29. Reporting of Frauds 

There was no instance of frauds during the year under review, which required the Statutory Auditors 

to report there on. 

30. Cost Records and Audit thereof 

Maintenance of Cost records pursuant to Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 as 

amended from time to time is not applicable to the Company for this financial year 2020-21. 

 

31. Credit Rating 

Brickwork Ratings has assigned a rating of BWR B+ which indicates “stable” in respect of the 

borrowings by the Company from Banks. 

32. Corporate Governance: 

As per Regulation 17 to 27 of the SEBI (LODR), 2015 with the Stock Exchanges, a separate Chapter 

on Corporate Governance practices followed by the Company together with undertaking for non 

applicability confirming compliance forms a part of this Report is annexed hereto. Though the 
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Corporate Governance is not applicable for the Company as the Paid-up Capital & Net worth of the 

Company is below the prescribed limit set by SEBI/Stock Exchange. 

 

33. Management Discussion and Analysis Report: 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, as stipulated under Regulation 

17 to 27 of the SEBI (LODR), 2015 with the Stock Exchanges in India, is presented in a separate section 

forming part of the Annual Report. 

 

34. Disclosure under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 

Redressal) Act, 2013: 

During the year under review, there were no cases filed pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women 

at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.  

 

36. Listing with Stock Exchanges: 

The Company confirms that it has paid the Annual Listing fees for the year 2021-22 to MSEI and CSE. 

where the Company’s Shares are listed.  

 

37. Disclosure on Compliance with Secretarial Standards 

The Directors confirm that the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Companies Secretaries of 

India have been complied with. 

  

38. Financial Statements  

The audited financial statement of the Company prepared in accordance with relevant Accounting 

Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India forms part of this Annual Report. 

The Compliance Officer will make these documents available upon receipt of a request from any 

member of the Company interested in obtaining the same. These documents will also be available for 

inspection at the Registered office of your Company during working hours up to the date of the 

Annual General Meeting. 

39. Codes of Conduct 

The Board of Directors of the Company has laid down two separate Codes of Conduct – one for 

Directors and another for Senior Management and Employees. It has also adopted Code for 

Independent Directors as per Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013. All Board members including 

Independent Directors and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the 

respective Codes of Conduct for the year under review.  

 

40. Statutory Disclosures 

A copy of audited financial statements of the said Companies will be made available to the members of 

the Company, seeking such information at any point of time.  A cash flow statement for the year 

2020-21 is attached to the Balance Sheet. Pursuant to the legislation ‘Prevention, Prohibition and 

Redressal of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace Act, 2013’ introduced by the Government of 

India, the Company has a policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at workplace. There was no case 

reported during the year under review under the said policy.  
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41. Acknowledgement: 

Yours Directors take this opportunity  to thank the Financial Institutions, Banks, Business Associates, 

Central and  State  Government  authorities,  Regulatory authorities,  Stock Exchanges and all the 

various stakeholders  for their continued co-operation  and support  to the Company and look forward 

to their continued support  in future. We very warmly thank all of our employees for their contribution 

to your Company’s performance. We applaud them for their superior levels of competence, dedication 

and commitment to your Company. 

 

 

For Indu Engineering and Textiles Limited 

 

 

 

 
 

Pramod Kumar Agarwal  Gaurav Agarwal 

Managing Director Director 

DIN: 01469533 DIN: 00037004 

D-63, Kamla Nagar, AGRA   D-63, Kamla Nagar, AGRA 

282005 UP IN 282005 UP IN  

 

 

Place: Agra 

Date:  3rd September, 2022 
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022: 

POLICY ON APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT  

I.  APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Board of Directors (Board) of the Company 

reviews and assesses Board composition and recommends the appointment of new Directors. In evaluating the 

suitability of individual Board member, the NRC shall take into account the following criteria regarding 

qualifications, positive attributes and also independence of director when Independent Director is to be 

appointed: 

1.  All Board appointments will be based on merit, in the context of the skills, experience, diversity, and 

knowledge, for the Board as a whole to be effective; 

2. Ability of the candidates to devote sufficient time and attention to his / her professional obligations as 

Director for informed and balanced decision making 

3. Adherence to the applicable Code of Conduct and highest level of Corporate Governance in letter and in 

sprit by the Directors 

 

Based on the recommendations of the NRC the board will evaluate the candidates and decide on the selection 

the appropriate member. The Board through the Chairman or the Managing Director will interact with the new 

member to obtain his/her consent for joining the Board. Upon receipt of the consent, the new Director will be 

co-opted by the Board in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules 

made there under. 

 

REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS 

If a Director is attracted with any disqualification as mentioned in any of the applicable Act, rules and 

regulations there under or due to non - adherence to the applicable policies of the Company, the NRC may 

recommend to the Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director subject to the compliance of 

the applicable statutory provisions 

SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL 

The NRC shall identify persons based on merit, experience and knowledge who may be appointed in senior 

management team. 

Senior Management personnel are appointed or promoted and removed/relieved with the authority of 

Managing Director & CEO based on the business need and the suitability of the candidate. The details of the 

appointment made and the personnel removed one level below the Key Managerial Personnel during a quarter 

shall be presented to the Board. 

For Indu Engineering and Textiles Limited 

 

 
 

Pramod Kumar Agarwal  Gaurav Agarwal 

Managing Director Director 

DIN: 01469533 DIN: 00037004 

Place: Agra 

Date:  3rd September, 2022 
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ANNEXURE 2A TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2022 

POLICY FOR REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS 

PURPOSE 

This Policy sets out the approach to Compensation of Directors, in Indu Engineering and Textiles Limited 

Policy Statement 

The Company has a well-defined Compensation policy for Directors, including the Chairman of the Company. 

The overall compensation philosophy which guides us to focus on enhancing the value, to attract, to retain and 

motivate Directors for achieving objectives of Company and to become a major player in all kinds and forms 

of steels, iron, Metals, iron casting grey iron, to be the most trusted brand in the business we operate in and 

focus on customer serenity through transparency, quality and on time delivery to be a thought leader and 

establish industry benchmarks in sustainable development. 

In order to effectively implement this, the Company has built a Compensation structure by a regular annual 

benchmarking over the years with relevant players across the industry the Company operates in. 

NON-EXECUTIVE INCLUDING INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) shall decide the basis for determining the compensation, 

both fixed and variable, to the Non-Executive Directors, including Independent Directors, whether as 

commission or otherwise. The NRC shall take into consideration various factors such as director’s 

participation in Board and Committee meetings during the year, other responsibilities undertaken, such as 

membership or Chairmanship of committees, time spent in carrying out their duties, role and functions as 

envisaged in Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 to 27 of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 

2015 with Stock Exchanges and such other factors as the NRC and Regulation 17 to 27 of SEBI (LODR) 

Regulation, 2015 with Stock Exchanges and such other factors as the NRC may consider deem fit for 

determining the compensation. The Board shall determine the compensation to Non-Executive Directors 

within the overall limits specified in the Shareholders resolutions. 

 

Managing Director and Executive Director 

Remuneration of the MD and Executive Directors reflects the overall remuneration philosophy and guiding 

principle of the Company. While considering the appointment and remuneration of Managing Director and 

Executive Directors, the NRC shall consider the industry benchmarks, merit and seniority of the person and 

shall ensure that the remuneration proposed to be paid is commensurate with the remuneration packages paid 

to similar senior level counterpart(s) in other companies. The policy aims at a balance between fixed and 

variable pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company 

and its goals. 

The remuneration to the MD shall be recommended by NRC to the Board. The remuneration consists of both 

fixed compensation and variable compensation and shall be paid as salary, commission, performance bonus, 

stock options (where applicable), perquisites and fringe benefits as per the policy of the Company from time to 

time and as approved by the Board and within the overall limits specified in the Shareholders resolution. While 

the fixed compensation is determined at the time of appointment, the variable compensation will be determined 

annually by the NRC based on the performance of MD. 
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The term of office and remuneration of MD is subject to the approval of the Board of Directors, shareholders, 

and Central Government, as may be required and within the statutory limits laid down in this regard from time 

to time.  

If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay, 

subject to the requisite approvals, remuneration to its MD in accordance with the provisions of Schedule V to 

the Companies Act, 2013 

If a MD draws or receives, directly or indirectly by way of remuneration any such sums in excess of the limits 

prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 or without the prior sanction of the Central Government, where 

required, he / she shall refund such sums to the Company and until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the 

Company. The Company shall not waive recovery of such sum refundable to it unless permitted by the Central 

Government of the Company. 

Remuneration for MD is designed subject to the limits laid down under the Companies Act, 2013 to 

remunerate him / her fairly and responsibly. The remuneration to the MD comprises of salary, perquisites and 

benefits as per policy of the Company and performance based incentive apart from retirement benefits like 

P.F., Superannuation, Gratuity, Leave Encashment, etc. as per Rules Salary is paid within the range approved 

by the Shareholders. Increments are effective annually, as recommended /approved by the NRC / Board. The 

MD is entitled for grant of Stock Options as per the approved Stock Options Schemes of the Company from 

time to time 

Directors 

The MD is an executive of the Company and draws remuneration from the Company. The Non-Executive 

Independent Directors receive sitting fees for attending the meeting of the Board and Committee thereof, as 

fixed by the Board of Directors from time to time subject to statutory provisions. The Non-Executive 

Independent Directors would be entitled to the remuneration under the Companies Act, 2013. In addition to the 

above, the Directors are entitled for reimbursement of expenses incurred in discharge of their duties. 

The Company may also grant Stock Options to the eligible employees and Directors (other than Independent 

Directors) in accordance with the ESOP Schemes of the Company from time to time and subject to the 

compliance statutes and regulations. 

Disclosures 

Information on the total remuneration of members of the Company’s Board of Directors, Managing Director 

and Executive Directors and KMP/senior management personnel may be disclosed in the Board’s report and 

the Company’s annual report / website as per statutory requirements in this regard. 

For Indu Engineering and Textiles Limited 

 

 

 

Pramod Kumar Agarwal  Gaurav Agarwal 

Managing Director Director 

DIN: 01469533 DIN: 00037004 

 

Place: Agra 

Date:  3rd September, 2022 
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ANNEXURE 2B TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022: 

POLICY ON REMUNERATION OF KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND EMPLOYEES 

This policy shall be effective from the financial year 2021-22. 

Objective 

To establish guidelines for remunerating employees fairly and in keeping with Statutes. 

Standards 

1. All employees, irrespective of contract, are to be paid remuneration fairly and the remuneration is to be 

externally competitive and internally equitable. The remuneration will be paid in accordance with the 

laid down Statutes. 

2. Remuneration for on-roll employees will include a fixed or guaranteed component payable monthly; 

and a variable component which is based on performance and paid annually. 

3. The fixed component of remuneration will have a flexible component with a bouquet of allowances to 

enable an employee to choose the allowances as well as the quantum based on laid down limits as per 

Company policy. The flexible component can be varied only once annually in the month of July, after 

the salary increment exercise. 

4. The variable component of the remuneration will be a function of the employee’s grade. 

5. The actual pay-out of variable component of the remuneration will be function of individual 

performance as well as business performance. Business performance is evaluated using a Balance 

Score Card (BSC) while individual performance is evaluated on Key Result Areas (KRA). Both the 

BSC & KRAs are evaluated at the end of the fiscal to arrive at the BSC rating of the business and PPS 

rating of the individual. 

6. An Annual compensation survey is carried out to ensure that the Company’s compensation is 

externally competitive. Based on the findings of the survey and the business performance, the 

committee decides: 

(i) The increment that needs to be paid for different performance ratings as well as grades. 

(ii) The increment for promotions and the total maximum increment. 

(iii) The maximum increase in compensation cost in % and absolute. 

(iv) Compensation corrections are made in a few cases where it is outside the band or to keep it 

tune with the market. 
                                 

                                                                                                        

 

For Indu Engineering and Textiles Limited 

 

 

 

Pramod Kumar Agarwal  Gaurav Agarwal 

Managing Director Director 

DIN: 01469533 DIN: 00037004 

D-63, Kamla Nagar, AGRA   D-63, Kamla Nagar, AGRA 

282005 UP IN 282005 UP IN  

 

Place: Agra 

Date:  3rd September, 2022 
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ANNEXURE 4A TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AS PER SECTION 197 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, RULE 5(2) 

OF CHAPTER XIII, COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL 

PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 

Name of 

the 

Employee 

Designation 

Gross 

Remunerati

on  

(subject to 

Income-tax) 

Qualifications Age  

(years) 

 

Experie

nce 

(years) 

Date of 

Commencement 

of employment 

 

Last 

employment  

and 

Designation  

 

NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA 

 

Notes: 

1.         Nature of employment of MD/CEO is contractual, subject to termination by 3 months notice    

            from either side. 

2.        For other employees nature of employment is contractual, subject to termination by One or    

           three month notice from either side or salary in lieu of notice period. 

3.        None of the above employee is related to any Director of the Company. 

4.        None of the above employee holds by himself/herself or along with his/her spouse and       

           dependent children 2% or more of the equity shares of the Company. 

5.        Employment terms and conditions are as per Company’s Rules. 

6.       Remuneration received as shown in the statement above includes basic salary and all other   

          allowances/perquisites as applicable. 

 

 

For Indu Engineering and Textiles Limited 

 
 

 

Pramod Kumar Agarwal  Gaurav Agarwal 

Managing Director Director 

DIN: 01469533 DIN: 00037004 

 

Place: Agra 

Date:  3rd September, 2022 
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ANNEXURE 5 TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2022 

Form No. MGT-9 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

As on the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022 

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS: 

 (i) CIN L74899UP1972PLC086068  

 (ii) Registration Date 30/03/1972 

 
(iii) Name of the Company 

INDU ENGINEERING AND TEXTILES 

LIMITED 

 
(iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company 

Company limited by shares/  

Indian Non-Government Company  

 
(v) 

Address of the Corporate Office and Contact 

Details 

12/16 A NAWAL GANJ, NUNHAI, AGRA-

282006 (U.P.) 

 
 

(vi) 

Address of the Registered Office and Contact 

Details 

12/16-A, NAWALGANJ, NUNHAI, AGRA- 

282006 
 

 

 (vii) Whether listed company Yes / No Yes 

(viii) 
Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar 

and Transfer Agent, if any 

Beetal Financial Computer Services Pvt. Ltd  

Beetal House, 3rd Floor, 99 Madangir, Behind 

Local Shopping Centre, Near Dada Harsukhdas 

Mandir, New Delhi, Delhi 110062  

 

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated:- 

Sr. 

No. 

Name and Description of main products/ 

services 

NIC Code of the Product/ 

service 

% to total turnover 

of the Company 

1 Metal ores and Metal in Primary form- 

 

  2410   99.73% 
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III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES – 

  Sr.      

  No. 

Name and address of 

the Company 

CIN / GLN Holding  / Subsidiary / 

Associate 

% of shares 

held 

Applicable 

Section 

NIL 

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity) 

(i) Category-wise Share Holding 

Category of 

Shareholders 

No. of shares held at the beginning of 

the year 01.04.2021 

No. of shares held at the end of the 

year 31.03.2022 

% 

Change 

During 

the year 

 Demat Physi

cal 

Total % of 

Total 

Share

s 

Demat Physi

cal 

Total % of 

Total 

Shares 

A. Promoters          

(1) Indian           

(a) Individual/HUF - - - - - - - - - 

(b) Central Govt. - - - - - - - - - 

(c) State Govt. (s) - - - - - - - - - 

(d) Bodies Corp. 115500 0 115500  2.24 115500 0 115500 2.24 - 

(e) Banks/FI - - - - - - - - - 

(f) Any Other - - - - - - - - - 

Sub-Total(A)(1): 115500 0 115500 2.24 115500 0 115500 2.24 - 

(2) Foreign   - - - - - -  

(a) NRIs/ 

Individuals 

- - - - - - - - - 

(b) Other-

Individuals 

- - - - - - - - - 

(c) Bodies Corp.   - - - - - -  

(d) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - - 

(e) Any Other - - - - - - - - - 

Sub-Total(A)(2): - - - - - - - - - 

Total Shareholding 

of Promoter 

(A)=(A)(1)+(A)(2) 

115500   - 115500  2.24 115500 - 115500 2.24 - 



 
 

 

Annual Report 2021-22 

 

28 

 

 

B. Public Shareholding 

(1) Institutions          

(a) Mutual Funds - - 0 - 0 0 0 0 - 

(b) Banks/FI - - 0 - 0 0 0 0 - 

(c) Central Govt. - - 0 - 0 0 0 0  

(d) State Govt. (s) - - 0 - 0 0 0 0  

(e) Venture Capital      

Funds 

 

- 

 

- 

 

0 

 

- 

0 0 0 0  

(f) Insurance 

Companies 

 

- 

 

- 

 

0 

 

- 

0 0 0 0  

(g) FIIs - - 0 - 0 0 0 0 - 

(h) Foreign Venture 

Capital Funds 

 

- 

 

- 

 

0 

 

- 

0 0 0 0  

- 

(i) Others (specify) - - 0 - 0 0 0 0 - 

Sub-Total(B)(1): - - 0 - 0 0 0 0 - 
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Category of 

Shareholders 

No. of shares held at the beginning of the 

year 01.04.2021 

 

No. of shares held at the end of the year 

31.03.2022 

% 

Chan

ge 

Duri

ng 

the 

year 

Demat Physical Total % of 

Total 

Shares 

Demat Physical Total % of 

Total 

Shares 

(2) Non-Institutions          

(a) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - -  

(i) Indian - - - - - - - -  

(ii) Overseas - - - - - - - - - 

(b) Individuals 3881523 947801 4329331 84.15  3881523 947801 4329331 84.15  - 

(i) Individual-

Shareholders 

holding 

nominal share 

capital upto Rs. 

2 Lakh 

142805 35088 177893 3.46 142805 35088 177893 3.46 - 

(ii) Individual-

Shareholders 

holding 

nominal share 

capital in excess 

of Rs. 2 Lakh  

3238725 912713 4151438 80.68 3238725 912713 4151438 80.68 - 

(c) Others Clearing 

Members (HUF) 
699037 1422 700459 13.61 699037 1422 700459 13.61 - 

Sub-Total(B)(2): 4080567 949223 5029790 97.76 4080567 949223 5029790 97.76  

Total Public 

Shareholding 

(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2) 

4080567 949223 5029790 97.76 4080567 949223 5029790 97.76 - 

C. Shares held by 

custodian for GDRs 

& ADRs 

- - - - - - - - - 

Grand Total 

(A+B+C) 
4196067 949223 5145290 100.00 4196067 949223 5145290 100.00 - 
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(ii) Shareholding of Promoters 

Sr. 

No. 
Shareholder’s Name 

Shareholding at the beginning 

of the year 01.04.2021 

Shareholding at the end of the 

year 31.03.2022 

% 

change 

in 

share 

holdin

g 

during 

the 

year 

No. of 

Shares 

% of 

total 

shares of 

the 

compan

y 

% of 

shares 

Pledged/ 

encumbe

red to 

total 

shares 

No. of 

Shares 

% of 

total 

shares of 

the 

company 

% of 

shares 

Pledged/

encumbe

red to 

total 

shares 

1 
GEE KAY TILES PRIVATE 
LIMITED 

115500 2.24 - 115500 2.24 - - 

 Total 115500 2.24 - 115500 2.24 - - 

 

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (Please specify, if there is no change) 

Sr. 

No. 

 Shareholding at the beginning of the 

year 01.04.2021 

Cumulative Shareholding 

during the year 

No. of shares % of total 

shares of the 

company 

No. of Shares % of total 

shares of the 

company 

1. At the beginning of the year 115500 2.24 115500 2.24 

2. NO CHANGE 

3. At the end of the year 115500 2.24 115500 2.24 
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(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of 

GDRs and ADRs): 

 

Sr. 

No. 
Top 10 shareholders 

No. of shares as 

on 31.03.2021 

No. of shares as 

on 31.03.2022 
Net change % of Capital 

1 
AJAY KUMAR 

AGARWAL 

388500 388500 - 
7.55 

2 KAMLESH KUMAR 
314213 314213 - 

6.11 

3 MEENAL DADU 
304500 304500 - 

5.92 

4 KANIKA MITTAL 
294000 29400 

-  

5.71 

5 SHOBHIT GOYAL 
236250 236250 

-  

4.59 

6 
VINOD KUMAR 

AGARWAL 

214200 214200 
-  

4.16 

7 
GIRIRAJ KISHORE 

AGARWAL HUF 

126000 126000 - 
 

2.45 

8 
AJAY KUMAR 

AGARWAL HUF 

57750 57750 - 
 

1.12 

9 
SAURABH 

AGARWAL HUF 
52500 52500 

- 
 

1.02 

10 
SANTOSH KUMAR 

SHARMA  

105000 105000 - 
 

2.04 
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(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

Sr. 

No. 
Name 

Shareholding at the beginning of the 

year 01.04.2021 

Cumulative Shareholding during the year 

31.03.2022 

No. of shares % of total Shares 

of the Company 

No. of shares % of total Shares of 

the Company 

1. 
GAURAV 

AGARWAL  
298725 5.81 298725 5.81 

2. 
AJAY KUMAR  

AGARWAL  
 388500 7.55  388500 7.55 

3. 

PRAMOD 

KUMAR 

AGARWAL  

737100   14.33 737100 14.33 

  

 

I) INDEBTEDNESS 

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding / accrued but not due for payment 

 (in INR) 

Particulars 

Secured Loans 

Excluding Deposits 

Unsecured 

Loans Deposits 

Total 

Indebtness 

Indebtedness at the beginning of the 

financial year     

i)    Principal Amount 15,85,69,550.60 3,44,350.00 - 15,89,13,900.60 

ii)   Interest due but not paid  - - - - 

iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - - 

Total (i+ii+iii)     

Change in Indebtedness during the 

financial year     

Addition  - 38,23,931.00 - 38,23,931.00 

Reduction 40,81,552.71 - - 40,81,552.71 

Net Change - - - (2,57,621.71) 

Indebtedness at the end of the financial 

year     

i)    Principal Amount 15,44,87,997.89 41,68,281.00 - 15,86,56,278.89 

ii)   Interest due but not paid  - - - - 

iii)  Interest accrued but not due - - - - 

Total (i+ii+iii) 15,44,87,997.89 41,68,281.00 - 15,86,56,278.89 
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II) REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:   (in INR) 

Sr. 

No. 
Particulars of Remuneration 

Name of MD/ WTD/MANAGER 

Total Amt. 
Pramod Kumar 

Agarwal (Managing 

Director) 

Gaurav Agarwal 

(Executive 

Director) 

Manju Rani 

Agarwal 

(Executive 

Director) 

1 Gross Salary 3,00,000.00 6,00,000.00 1,20,000.00 10,50,000.00 

 (a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 

17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 

NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 (b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 

1961 

30,000.00 NIL NIL NIL 

 (c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 

Income-tax Act, 1961 

NIL NIL NIL NIL 

2 Stock Option related perquisites NIL NIL NIL NIL 

3 Sweat Equity NIL NIL NIL NIL 

4 Commission NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 - as % of profit     

 - Others, specify… NIL NIL NIL NIL 

5 Others, please specify NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 Total (A) 3,30,000.00 6,00,000.00 1,20,000.00 10,50,000.00 

 Ceiling as per the Act     

 

B. Remuneration to other directors: (Rs. in Lacs) 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Particulars of 

Remuneration 

Name of Directors Total Amount 

1 Independent 

Directors 

Vineet Kumar 

Agarwal 

Vinod Sharma Anil Sharma  

  Fee for 

attending 

board / 
committee 

meetings 

NIL NIL NIL NIL 

  Commissio

n 

NIL NIL NIL NIL 

  Others, 

please 

specify 

NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 Total (1) NIL NIL NIL NIL 

2 Other Non-

Executive 

Directors 

NIL NIL 
Total Amount 

  Fee for 

attending 

board / 

committee 

NIL NIL  



 
 

 

Annual Report 2021-22 

 

34 

meetings 

  Commissio

n 

NIL NIL NIL 

  Others, 

please 

specify 

NIL NIL NIL 

 Total (2) NIL NIL NIL 

 Total 

(B)=(1+2) 

NIL NIL NIL 

 Total (A) NIL NIL NIL 

 Total 

Managerial 

Remuneration 

NIL  NIL NIL 

 Overall Ceiling 
as per the Act 

The remuneration is well within the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

 

 

A. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD           (Rs. In Lakhs) 

Sr. No. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel 

  CFO 

 

Company 

Secretary 

Total 

1 Gross Salary - -  

 (a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 

17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 

- - NIL 

 (b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 

1961 

- - NIL 

 (c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 

Income-tax Act, 1961 

- - NIL 

2 Stock Option related perquisites - - NIL 

3 Sweat Equity - - NIL 

4 Commission - - NIL 

 - as % of profit - - NIL 

 - others, specify… - - NIL 

5 Others, please specify - - NIL 

 Total  - -  
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III) Penalties / Punishment / Compounding of Offences: 

Type Section of the 

Companies Act 

Brief 

Description 

Details of Penalty / 

Punishment / 

Compounding fees 

imposed 

Authority 

[RD / NCLT / 

COURT] 

Appeal made, if 

any (give Details) 

Penalty 
 

NONE 
Punishment 

Compounding 
 

 

 

Other Officers in Default 

Type Section of the 

Companies Act 

Brief 

Description 

Details of Penalty / 

Punishment / 

Compounding fees 

imposed 

Authority 

[RD / NCLT / 

COURT] 

Appeal made, if 

any (give Details) 

Penalty 
 

NONE 
Punishment 

Compounding 
 

 

 

For and on behalf of the Board 

of Indu Engineering and Textiles Limited 

 

 

 

 

Pramod Kumar Agarwal  Gaurav Agarwal 

Managing Director Director 

DIN: 01469533 DIN: 00037004 
D-63, Kamla Nagar, AGRA   D-63, Kamla Nagar, AGRA 

282005 UP IN 282005 UP IN  

 

 

 

 

Place: Agra 

Date:  3rd September, 2022 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONS AND ANALYSIS REPORTS 

Your Directors are pleased to present the Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year ended 

31st March, 2022. 

 

The management discussion and analysis have been included in consonance with the code of corporate 

governance as approved by The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). 

 

Investors are cautioned that these discussions contain certain forward looking statements that involve risk and 

uncertainties including those risks which are inherent in the Company’s growth and strategy. The company 

undertakes no obligation to publicly update or revise any of the opinion or forward looking statements expressed 

in this report consequent to new information or developments, events or otherwise. 

 

The management of the company is presenting herein the overview, opportunities and threats, initiatives by the 

company and overall strategy of the company and its outlook for the future. This outlook is based on 

management’s own assessment and it may vary due to future economic and other future developments in the 

country. 

 

Overview 

The following operating and financial review is intended to convey the management’s perspective on the 

financial and operating performance of the Company at the end of Financial Year 2021-22. This should be read 

in conjunction with the Company’s financial statements, the schedules and notes thereto and the other 

information included elsewhere in the Annual Report. The Company’s financial statements have been prepared 

in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, the guidelines issued by the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (SEBI) in India.  

 

Industry Structure and Development: 

Of late, there has been tremendous growth in the Steel/automobiles Industries in India and the development 

thereof has been remarkable.  
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Opportunities and Threats: 

The Company is into manufacturing/exporting & wholesale dealers of cast iron, all types of graded castings, 

auto parts brake drum, etc. There is tremendous scope of growth in the products manufactured by the Company. 

The Company expects to target global markets, aggressively in the coming years.  

 The Company may face competition from the existing or new players in the iron casting & its allied activities. 

The Company might require funds for the expansion programme, which may increase the cost of production, if 

it procured the funds as debts. Presently, the Company has higher interest cost, which drags down its 

profitability. The Company’s funds requirement is more from loans/debts rather than equity, which results into 

higher interest cost. 

 

Outlook 

The Company generated more profit during the year compare to last year. The present economic scenario looks 

bright on account of stable Government at the Centre & its industry friendly economic policies.  

 

Risk & Concerns: 

The risk management process typically involves identifying particular risk events or circumstances relevant to 

the organisation's objectives (risks and opportunities), assessing them in terms of likelihood and magnitude of 

impact, determining a response strategy, and monitoring them on a regular basis.  

Risks related to our company are discussed below.  

Strategic risks  

Strategic risks relate to our Company’s long-term strategy and plans, including risks associated with macro 

environment in which the Company operates, global steel industry, growth projects and competitiveness of our 

operations.  

Operational risks 

Operational risks relate to those impacting our Company’s operations. It includes but is not limited to supply 

chain, employee productivity, health and safety of employees and environmental impact.  

Legal and Compliance risks  

Legal and compliance risks relate to risks arising from outcome of legal proceedings, government action, 

regulatory action, which could result in additional costs. 

Financial risks  

Financial risks relate to our Company’s ability to meet financial obligations and lessen the impact of various 

factors like interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, credit rating etc. It also includes any risk to servicing 

pension obligations and to financial ratios due to impairment.  
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Internal Control Systems and Their Adequacy: 

The Board of Directors is responsible for ensuring that internal financial controls have been laid down in the 

Company and that such controls are adequate and is functioning effectively. Internal Financial Controls that 

encompass the policies, processes and monitoring systems for assessing and mitigating operational, financial 

and compliance risks and controls over related party transactions, substantially exist. The senior management 

reviews and certifies the effectiveness of the internal control mechanism over financial reporting, adherence to 

the code of conduct and Company’s policies for which they are responsible and also the compliance to 

established procedures relating to financial or commercial transactions, where they have a personal interest or 

potential conflict of interest, if any.  

 

Human Resources / Industry Relations: 

The Company recognizes that its success is deeply embedded in the success of its human capital.  

During 2021-22, the Company continued to strengthen its HR processes in line with its objective of creating an 

inspired workforce.  

 

The employee engagement initiatives included placing greater emphasis on learning and development, 

launching leadership development program, introducing internal communication, providing opportunities to 

staff to seek inspirational roles through internal job postings, streamlining the Performance Management 

System, making the compensation structure more competitive and streamlining the performance-link rewards 

and incentives. The Company believes that learning is an ongoing process. Towards this end, the Company has 

built a training infrastructure which seeks to upgrade skill levels across grades and functions through a 

combination of in-house and external program.  

 

Compliance: 

 

The Managing Director/Executive Director make a declaration at each Board Meeting regarding compliance 

with provisions of various statutes after obtaining confirmation from compliance Department of the Company. 

The Company Secretary ensures compliance with the SEBI regulations and provisions of the LODR. The Group 

Executive Director (Finance & Corporate), as the Compliance Officer, ensures compliance with the guidelines 

on insider trading for prevention of the same.  

 

Cautionary Statement: 

Certain statements under "Management Discussion & Analysis" describing the Company's objectives,  

projections, estimates, expectations or predictions may be forward looking statement within the meaning of 

applicable securities laws and regulations. Although the expectations are based on reasonable assumptions, the 
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actual results could materially differ from those expressed or implied, since the Company's operations are 

influenced by many external and internal factors beyond the control of the Company. The Company assumes no 

responsibility to publicly amend, modify or revise any forward looking statements, on the basis of any 

subsequent developments, information or events. 

Directors’ Interest in the Company 

 

Sometime, the Company do enter into contracts with companies in which some of the Directors of the Company 

are interested as director or member. However, these contracts are in the ordinary course of the Company’s 

business without giving any specific weight age to them. Directors regularly make full disclosures to the Board 

of Directors regarding the nature of their interest in the companies in which they are directors or members. Full 

particulars of contracts entered with companies in which directors are directly or indirectly concerned or 

interested are entered in the Register of Contracts maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

the same is placed in every Board Meeting for the noting of the Directors. 

 

Meetings of the Board of Director 

 

During the Financial Year 2021-22, 8(eight) Board Meetings were held on the following dates: 

1. 01.06.2021 

2. 30.06.2021 

3. 12.07.2021 

4. 13.08.2021 

5. 04.09.2021 

6. 12.11.2021 

7. 10.12.2021 
8. 20.01.2022 

 

Details of the Board of Directors and External Directorships 

Particulars of the Board’s Composition, Directors’ Attendance at Board Meetings and at the previous Annual 

General Meeting, number of other Directorships and Board-Committee memberships held as on 31st March 

2022, are given below: 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of the Director, 

Designation and 

Category 

Attendance of 

Board 

Meetings 

Attendan

ce at 

previous 
AGM 

No. of 

other 

Director- 
ships (!) 

Number of other Board 

Committee positions (@) 

As Chairman As Member 

1 Gaurav Agarwal  8 Yes  Nil  None None 

2 Pramod Kumar 

Agarwal  
8 Yes  Nil None 1 

3 Anil Sharma 8 Yes  Nil  None None 

4 Manju Rani 

Agarwal  

8 Yes Nil  None None  

5 Vineet Kumar Agrawal 8 Yes Nil 2 1 

6 Vinod Kumar Sharma 8 Yes Nil 1 2 
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(!)      Includes directorships held in public limited Companies only. 

Directorships held in Private Companies, Foreign Companies and Companies registered under Section 25 

of the Companies Act, 1956 are excluded. 

(@)   includes only positions held in Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 

Shareholders’/ Investor Grievance Committee of the Board of Directors 

 

 

Committees of the Board 

The Board has constituted following Committees of Directors: 

 Audit Committee, 

 Nomination & Remuneration Committee, and 

 Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee, 

 

 Audit Committee 

 

Terms of Reference: 

The role and terms of reference of Audit Committee covers areas mentioned under Regulation 17 to 27 of 

(LODR). 2015 (as amended from time to time) and requirements of section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, 

besides other terms as may be referred by the Board of Directors. All the Members of Audit Committee are 

qualified and having insight to interpret and understand financial statements.  The brief terms of reference of the 

Audit Committee is outlined as under: 

1. To select and establish accounting policies.  

2. To recommend the Appointment, Remuneration & terms of Appointment of Auditors of the Company. 

3. To review the adequacy of the Internal Control System. 

4. To review financial statements and Auditor Report thereon. 

5. To review the adequacy of the Internal Audit function & reports, reporting structure coverage and 

frequency of internal audit. 

6. To review the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors and report the matter to 

the Board of Directors. 

7. To review the Company’s financial and risk management policies. 

8. To review and monitor Auditors independence and performance and effectiveness of audit process. 

9. To approve or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties. 

10. To scrutinize inter-corporate loans & investments. 

11. To do the valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary. 

12. To evaluate internal financial controls & risk management systems. 

13. To monitor the end use of funds rose through public offers, if any & its related matters.  

 

Meetings of the Committee: 

The Committee met 4 (Four) times during the financial year 2021-22.  
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Constitution of the Committee: 

The Constitution of the Audit Committee is in conformity with Regulation 18 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 

2015. The Chairman of the Audit Committee is an Independent Director and is financially literate and has 

accounting related financial management expertise. 

 

The Composition of the Committee, together with the details of the attendance of each member as at 31st March, 

2022 is given below:  

Sr. 

No. 

Name of the Director Designation Meetings 

Attended 

Category 

1. Mr. Pramod Kumar 

Agarwal 

Member 4 Executive Director 

2. Mr. Vineet Kumar 

Agrawal 

Chairman 4 Non- Executive Independent 

Director 

3. Mr. Vinod Kumar Sharma Member 
 

4 Non- Executive  Independent 
Director 

 

 Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

Terms of the Committee: 

1. To scrutinize and approve registration of transfer of shares/warrants issued or to be issued. 

2. The Shareholders’ and Investors’ complaints on matters relating to transfer of shares, non-receipt 

of annual report, non-receipt of dividends and matters related thereto. 

3. To exercise all power conferred on the Board of Directors under Articles of Association. 

4. Attending to investors’ queries and complaints regarding transfer, dividend, annual reports, etc. 

5. Attending to complaints of Investor routed by SEBI/Stock Exchanges/ RBI. 

 

Details of Pending Investor Grievances and Compliance Officer: 

There were no investor grievances pending for Redressal as the end of the financial year and all the queries from 

the stakeholders were attended to promptly. Further there were no pending transfers for the year under review.  

Further the details of the Compliance Officer designated for handling of the Investor grievances is provided as 

under: 

Name     : Mr. Rupendra Kumar Kushwaha   

Address :  12/16A, Nawalganj, Nunhai, Agra-282006 

 

Email ID   :   induagracs@gmail.com  

 

Composition & Meeting 

 

The present Committee will be comprises of Mr. Vineet Kumar Agrawal as a Chairman, Mr. Vinod Kumar 

Sharma, and Mr. Anil Sharma as Members of the Committee.  

1(one) meeting of the members of Stakeholders Relationship Committee was held during the financial year 

ended 31st March, 2022. 

 

 

mailto:induagracs@gmail.com
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 Nomination & Remuneration Committee: 

Terms of the Committee 

The Committee was renamed as Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the terms of reference of the said 

committee has been revised in order to align with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and revised 

Regulation 17 to 27 of (LODR) Regulation, 2015 as amended from time to time. However, none of the Directors 

has been given any remuneration during the year under review. 

No Stock option has been allotted to any of the Directors during the financial year 2021-22. The terms of 

reference of Committee broadly includes identifying & selection of candidates for appointment as 

Directors/Independent Director based on certain laid down criteria; performing all such functions as are required 

to be performed by the Committee with regard to such matters as specified under Regulation 27(2) of LODR, 

Regulation 2015 and requirements of section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. It formulate the criteria for 

determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend to the Board a 

policy relating to the remuneration for the Directors, key managerial personnel and other employees. While 

reviewing the Company’s remuneration policies and deciding on the remuneration, the Board and the Committee 

considers the performance of the Company, the current trends in the industry, the qualifications of the appointee, 

their experience, past performance, responsibilities shouldered by them, the statutory provisions and other 

relevant factors. 

The Committee also ensures that the level & composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, 

retain and motivate directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully. The Committee also 

ensures that the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance 

benchmark. The Committee also ensures that the remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel & senior 

management involves a balance between fixed & incentive pay reflecting short & long term performance 

objectives appropriate to the working of the Company & its goals.  

 

Composition 

The present Committee will be comprises of Mr. Vinod Kumar Sharma (Chairman), Mr. Vineet Kumar Agrawal 

and Mr. Anil Sharma as Members of the Committee. 

 

2(two) meetings of the members of Nomination and Remuneration Committee was held during the financial year 

ended 31st March, 2022. 

 

Subsidiary Company 

The Company does not have any subsidiary companies. 

 

Disclosures: 

 Materially significant Related Party Transactions:  

 The Company has no material significant related party transactions that may have a potential conflict 

with the interest of the Company. The details of transactions between the Company and the related 

parties are given under Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2022.  

 The Company has followed the Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

India to the extent applicable. 

 The Company has adopted the Code of Ethics and Business principles for the members of Board and 
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senior management personnel. 

 The Company has adopted a ‘Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading (“the Code”) in 

accordance with the requirements of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider 

Trading) Regulations, 1992 and its subsequent amendment. The code expressly lays down the guidelines 

and the procedure to be followed and disclosures to be made, while dealing with shares of the Company and 

cautioning them on the consequences of non-compliance thereof. However whistle blower policy has not 

been formed during the year under review. Further, we affirm that no personnel have been denied access to 

the Audit Committee. Employees can report to the Management concerned regarding unethical behavior, 

act or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct Policy. 

 The Company is in compliance with all mandatory requirements of Regulation 17 TO 27 of (LODR) 

Regulation, 2015 

 The Company has ensured that the person who is being appointed as an Independent Director has the 

requisite qualifications and experience which would be of use to the Company and which in the opinion of 

the Company would enable him to contribute effectively to the Company in his capacity as an Independent 

Director. 

 The Company has complied with all requirements of regulatory authorities. No penalties/strictures were 

imposed on the Company by Stock Exchanges/SEBI or any other statutory authority on any matter related 

to Capital market.  

 

Risk Management 

The Company has a Risk Management Policy which has been adopted by the Board of Directors, currently, the 

Company’s risk management approach comprises of governance, identification & assessment of risk. The risks 

have been prioritized through a Companywide exercise. Members of Senior Management have undertaken the 

ownership and are working on mitigating the same through co-ordination among the various departments, 

insurance coverage, security policy and personal accident coverage for lives of all employees. 

Risk Assessment and Minimization procedures are in existence and are reviewed periodically. The Risk 

Management Committee monitors and reviews the risk assessment, mitigation and risk management plan for the 

Company from time to time. 

 

Details of General Meetings: 

Annual General Meetings: 

The details of last 3 Annual General Meetings together with the details of the special resolution passed thereat is 

provided hereunder: 

Year Day, Date and Time Venue Special Resolutions Passed 

2021 30/09/2021 
12/16 A,NAWALGANJ 
NUNHAI, AGRA , UP 

282006 IN 
4 

2020 30/09/2020 

12/16 A,NAWALGANJ 

NUNHAI, AGRA , UP 

282006 IN 
3 

2019 11/09/2019 

12/16 A,NAWALGANJ 

NUNHAI, AGRA , UP 

282006 IN 
None 
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Market Share Price Data: 

There has been no trading at The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited and Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India 

Limited. 

Extra- Ordinary General Meetings: 

Details of the Extra- Ordinary General Meetings of the Company held during 3 preceding previous years 

together  with a list of the special resolutions passed there at  is given hereunder: 

Financial 

Year 

Date  Venue Special Resolutions passed 

2018-19 - - - 

2019-20 - - - 

2020-21 - - - 

 

Means of Communication: 

The Quarterly, Half-Yearly and Annual Financial Results of the Company are forwarded to The Calcutta Stock 

Exchange Limited and Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (MSEI) immediately upon its approval by the 

Board of Directors and are simultaneously published in leading newspapers in English and Hindi (regional 

language).  

 

In accordance with the LODR requirements, data pertaining to Shareholding Pattern, Quarterly Financial Results 

and Other Details are forwarded to the Stock Exchange. 

 

During the year under review, no presentation was made to the institutional investors or analysts. 

 

General Shareholders’ Information: 

Date, Time & Venue of Annual General 
Meeting 

30th September, 2022 at 3.30 P.M at Registered office of the 
Company 

Listing on Stock Exchanges 

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on The Calcutta 

Stock Exchange Limited and Metropolitan Stock Exchange of 

India Ltd. (MSEI) 

 

 

Book Closure dates: 

The register of members and share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from 24.09.2022 to 

30.09.2022 (both days inclusive). 
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Share Transfer System: 

Presently the Share Transfer documents received by the Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agents in physical 

form are processed, approved and dispatched within a period of 5 to 15 days from the  date  of receipt,  provided 

the documents received are complete and the shares under transfer are not under dispute. 

 

For expeditious processing of share transfers, the Board of Directors of the Company has authorized the 

Compliance Officer, to decide on various issues like transfers/transmission of securities in physical form, change 

in status of share holders and confirmation of dematerialization. 

 

SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES) 

 

SEBI vide circular dated 3rd June, 2011 introduced SCORES, i.e., SEBI Complaints Redress System the system 

of processing of investors complaints in  a centralized web based complaints redress portal known as ‘SCORES’. 

The salient features of this system are: centralized database of all Complaints, online upload Action Taken 

Reports (ATRs) by concerned Companies and online viewing by investors of action taken on the complaints and 

its current status. 

The Company is registered with SEBI under the SCORES system. 

 

ISIN No. 

The Company’s Demat International Security Identification Number (ISIN) for its equity shares in NSDL and 

CDSL is INE022S01018 

 

Outstanding GDRs/ ADRs: 

The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs. 

Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity: 

The Company’s equity shares are available for trading in the depository systems of National Securities 

Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited. As on 31st March, 2022, equity shares, 

constituting % of the paid-up equity capital of the Company, stood dematerialized. 
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Total Number of shares dematerialized as on 31.03.2022 

Depository No. of Shares % of Paid up Capital 

NSDL 2,94,000  5.71 

CDSL 39,02,067    75.84     

Physical 9,49,223    18.45    

Total 51,45,290 100.00 

 

Audit Qualifications 

There are no Audit qualifications in the Company’s financial statement for the year under review. 

Financial Calendar (Tentative): 

Financial Year             :  1st April, 2022- 31st March, 2023 

First quarter results  :  on or before 14th August, 2022  

Half-yearly results  :  on or before 14th November, 2022 

Third quarter results                   :  on or before 14th February, 2023 

Annual results            :  on or before 30th May, 2023 

 

Address for Correspondence: 

1. The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited,. 

7,Lyons Range, 

Kolkata-700001 
              Email ID:  

cseadmn@cse-india.com 

 

2. Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited 

Vibgyor Towers, 4th floor, Plot No C 62, G-Block, 

Opp. Trident Hotel, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra, 

Mumbai – 400 098, India 

 

Email ID: 

listingcompliance@msei.in 

 

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit  

A practicing Company Secretary carries out reconciliation of share capital audit, on half-yearly basis to reconcile 

the total admitted capital with NSDL & CDSL and total issued and listed capital. The audit confirms that the 

total issued/paid up capital is in agreement with the total number of shares in physical form and the total number 

of dematerialized shares held with NSDL & CDSL. 

 

Nomination 

Individual Shareholders holding shares singly or jointly in physical form can nominate a person in whose name 

the shares shall be transferable in case of death of the registered shareholder(s). Nomination facility in respect of 

shares held in electronic form is also available with the depository participants as per the bye-laws and business 

rules applicable to NSDL and CDSL. Nomination form SH-13 ([Pursuant to section 72 of the Companies Act, 

2013 and rule 19(1) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules 2014] can be obtained from the 

mailto:cseadmn@cse-india.com
mailto:listingcompliance@msei.in


 
 

 

Annual Report 2021-22 

 

47 

Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. It is also available on Public domain. 

 

Vigil Mechanism & Whistle Blower Policy 

The Company has established a vigil mechanism by adopting a Whistle Blower Policy for Directors and 

employees to report genuine concerns in the prescribed manner. The vigil mechanism is overseen by the Audit 

Committee and provides adequate safeguards against victimization of employees and Directors. Whistle Blower 

Policy is a mechanism to address any compliant(s) related to fraudulent transactions or reporting intentional non-

compliance with the Company’s policies and procedures and any other questionable accounting/operational 

process followed. It provides a mechanism for employees to approach the Chairman of Audit Committee. During 

the year, no such incidence was reported and no personnel were denied access to the Chairman of the Audit 

Committee. The Whistle Blower Policy of the Company is available on its website. 

 

Non Mandatory Requirements 

i) The Board 
 

At present, there is no separate office in the Company for use of Chairman. 
 

ii) Shareholders Rights 
 

Half yearly financial results including summary of the significant events are presently not being sent 

to shareholders of the Company. 
 

iii) Audit Qualifications  
There is no audit qualification. Every Endeavour is made to make the financial statements without 

qualification. 
 

iv) Separate posts of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 
 

The Company does not have any Chairman. A separate person is Executive Director of the Company. 
 

v) Reporting of Internal Auditors 
 

Reports of Internal Auditors are placed before the Audit Committee for its review. 

 

 

For and on behalf of the Board 

of Indu Engineering and Textiles Limited 

 

 

 

 

Pramod Kumar Agarwal  Gaurav Agarwal 

Managing Director Director 

DIN: 01469533 DIN: 00037004 
D-63, Kamla Nagar, AGRA   D-63, Kamla Nagar, AGRA 

282005 UP IN 282005 UP IN  

 

Place: Agra 

Date:  3rd September, 2022 
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COMLIANCE CERTIFICATE 

(Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015) 

To, 

The Board of Directors 

Indu Engineering and Textiles Limited  

We hereby certify that for the financial year 2021-22 

1. We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statements for the financial year 2021-22 

and to the best of our knowledge and belief: 

a. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 

statements that might be misleading;  

b. These financial statements and other financial information included in this report present  a true  

and  fair view of the Company ’s affairs for the period presented in this report  and are in 

compliance with current  accounting standards,  applicable laws and regulations and full 

explanations has been given for any material departure in compliance of Accounting Standards. 

2. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during 

the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the Company’s code of conduct. 

3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and have 

evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting. 

4. We have disclosed to the Company’s Auditor and Audit Committee of the Company, all significant 

deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps taken 

or proposed to be taken to rectify the deficiencies. 

5. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee: 

a. Significant changes in accounting policies made during the year and that the same have been 

disclosed suitably in the notes to the financial statements; and 

b. That there were no Instances of significant fraud that involves management or other employees who 

have a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting. 

6. We further declare that all Board Members and Senior Managerial Personnel have affirmed compliance with 

the Code of Conduct for the current Financial Year. 

 

For Indu Engineering and Textiles Limited 

 

 

 

Place: Agra                          Ajay Kumar Singh                   Pramod Kumar Agarwal 

Date:  3rd September, 2022                               Chief Financial Officer                 (Managing Director) 

DIN: 01469533 
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

To,  

The Members of INDU ENGINEERING AND TEXTILES LIMITED 

12/16A, Nawal Ganj Nunhai, Agra-282006 

 

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of 

Indu Engineering and Textiles Limited having CIN L74899UP1972PLC086068 and having registered office at 

12/16A, Nawal Ganj Nunhai, Agra-282006 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me by 

the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with 

Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to 

the verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as 

considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none 

of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st  March, 

2022 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority  

S. 

No. 
Name 

DESIGNATION 
DIN 

Date of appointment in 

the Company 

1. Mr. Pramod Kumar Agarwal 
MANAGING 

DIRECTOR 
01469533 15.10.2004 

2. Mr. Gaurav Agarwal 
EXECUTIVE 

DIRECTOR 
00037004 06.11.2006 

3. Mr. Anil Sharma 

NON 

EXECUTIVE 

INDEPENDENT 

DIRECTOR 

06929775 30.06.2015 

4. Mrs. Manju Rani Agarwal 
WOMAN 

DIRECTOR 
07221175 30.06.2015 

5. Mr. Vineet Kumar Agarwal 

NON 

EXECUTIVE 

INDEPENDENT 

07596634 03.09.2016 
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Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of 

the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on my verification. 

This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or 

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.  

 

For Anuj Ashok & Associates  

 

 

 

(Anuj Ashok)  

(Company Secretaries) 

C. P. No. - 4916 

Mem. No. 5469   
UDIN : F005469D000881685 

Dated this 31st August, 2022 at Agra

DIRECTOR 

6. Mr.Vinod Kumar Sharma 

NON 

EXECUTIVE 

INDEPENDENT 

DIRECTOR 

07601526 03.09.2016 
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Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

For the financial year ended 31st March, 2022 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of Managerial Personal) rules, 2014] 

 

To 

The Members 

INDU ENGINEERING AND TEXTILES LIMITED    

12/16A, NAWAL GANJ NUNHAI, AGRA-282006 

UTTAR PRADESH  

 

I/We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence 

to good corporate practices by INDU ENGINEERING AND TEXTILES LIMITED (hereinafter called the 

company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me/us a reasonable basis for evaluating 

the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

 

I/We have examined the Company’s registers, records, books, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 

records, papers maintained by the company INDU ENGINEERING AND TEXTILES LIMITED (“The 

Company”) as required to be maintained under the Companies Act, 2013, (the Act) and the rules made there 

under and the provisions contained in the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and other 

provisions and law’s as applicable for the year ended March 31, 2022:  

 

1. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the examinations carried out by us and 

explanations furnished and representations made to us by the Company, its Representative officers and agents, 

we report that the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, the Rules made thereunder and the 

Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company with regard to: 

 

a) Under The Companies Act, 2013 read with The Companies Act, 1956 maintenance of various statutory 

registers and documents and making necessary entries therein as reported to us; 

 

b) Closure of Register of Members/record date for Equity & debenture holders (No debentures in company) as 

applicable; 

 

c) Forms, returns, documents and resolutions required to be filed with the Registrar of Companies,  Regional 

Director, Central Government, Company Law Board or other authorities; 
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d) Limited view on Service of documents by the Company on its Members, Debenture holders, Creditors Stock 

Exchanges, Auditors and the Registrar of Companies; 

 

e) Notice of Board and various Committee meetings of Directors as available; 

f) Meetings of Directors and all the Committees of Directors and passing of circular resolutions as available; 

 

g) Limited view on notice and convening of Annual General Meeting and general meetings held during the year; 
 

h) Minutes of the proceedings of the Board Meetings Committee Meetings and General Meetings; 

 

i) Approvals of the Board of Directors, Committee of Directors, Members and government authorities, wherever 

required; 

 

j) Constitution of the Board of Directors, Committees of Directors and appointment, retirement and 

reappointment of Directors including Managing Directors and Executive Directors; 

 

k) Payment of remuneration to Directors, Managing Directors and Executive Directors; 

 
l) Borrowings and registration of charges; 

 

m) Report of the Board of Directors; 

 

n) Limited view on investment of the Company’s funds including inter corporate loans and investments; 

 

o) Generally, all other applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules there under as informed. 

 

2. We further report that: 

 

a) Upto the extent of our knowledge the Directors have complied with the requirements as to disclosure of 

interests and concerns in contracts and arrangements, shareholdings and directorships in other Companies and 
interest in other entities as informed; 

 

b) Upto the extent of our knowledge  the Directors have complied with the disclosure requirements in respect to 

their eligibility of appointment, their being independent, compliance with the provisions of Companies Act 

2013; 

 

c) Upto the extent of our access the Company has obtained all necessary approvals under various provisions of 

the Act where necessary as informed; 

 

d) Upto the extent of our access there was no prosecution initiated against or show cause notice received by the 

Company during the year under review under the Companies Act, and rules, regulations and guidelines under 
these Acts as informed. 

 

e) We further state that the Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the 

company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these records and / or information as made available/ 

provided to us during examination. 

 

f) We further state that the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 

about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records only. The verification was done on test basis to 

ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we 

followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
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g) We further state that we have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial and any other 

records books, papers, notices etc of the company. 

 

h) We further state that the where ever required, we have obtained the management representation about the 

compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

 
i) We further state that the compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 

regulations, standards is the responsibility of management Our examination was limited to the verification of 

procedures on test basis and our access to respective areas. 

 

j) We further state that the secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance to the future viability of the company 

nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company. 

 

3. We further report that: 

 

The audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of 

the contents of the secretarial records only. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts 
are reflected in records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for 

our opinion. 

 

The Company is already listed in Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd. and In Metropolitan Stock exchange of India 

Limited during May 2016 hence: 

 

a) During the year the Company complied with to the extent provision and requirements under the Equity 

Listing Agreements and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 With MSEI 

Limited and having Limited view on compliance with all provision and requirements of The CSE Limited; 

 

b) Upto the extent of our access the Company complies with to the extent provision of the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 including the 
provisions with regard to disclosures and maintenance of records required under the Regulations; 

 

c) The Company was complying with to the extent provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992 including the provisions with regard to disclosures and 

maintenance of records required under the Regulations; 

 

d) Upto the extent of our access the Company was complying with to the extent provisions of the SEBI 

(Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 1996 including submitting of Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit 

Report’s. 

 

e) There were no issues during the year which required specific compliance of the provisions of the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009; 

 

f) There were no issues during the year which required specific compliance of the provisions of the Securities 

Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA) and the Rules made under that Act. 

 

g) During the year the Company complied with to the extent provision and requirements under Regulation of the 

SEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 including the provisions with regard 

to Intimation of Resignation of the Director of the Company required under the Regulations. 

 

We further report that: 
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As reported to us to the extent required legal formalities, approvals, registration and license for Manufacturing 

Process and Projects of the Company has been taken care by the management of the company. 

                       

 

   For Anuj Ashok & Associates 
 

 

 

 

(Anuj Ashok)  

(Company Secretaries) 

C. P. No. - 4916 

Mem. No. 5469 

        UDIN : F005469D000841480 

Dated this 24th August, 2022 at Agra 
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Form No. MGT-11 

 Proxy form [Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

CIN: L74899UP1972PLC086068 

Name of the Company: Indu Engineering and Textiles Limited 

Registered office: 12/16A, Nawal Ganj, Nunhai, Agra-282006  

Name of the member (s):  

Registered address:  

E-mail Id:  

Folio No/ Client Id: 

DP ID:  

I/We, being the member (s) of …………. shares of the above named company, hereby appoint  

1. Name: ……………………  

Address:  

E-mail Id:  

Signature:…………….,  

or failing him  

2. Name: ……………………  

Address:  

E-mail Id:  

Signature:…………….,  

3. Name: ……………………  

Address:  

E-mail Id:  

Signature: …………….,  

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 

50th Annual General Meeting of the company, to be held on the Friday, September 30, 2022 

At 3:30 p.m. at 12/16A, Nawal Ganj, Nunhai, Agra-282006 and at any adjournment thereof in 

respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:  
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Resolution 

Number 
Resolution 

Vote 

No. of shares For Against 

ORDINARY BUSINESSES: 

1. 

Adoption of Balance sheet, statement of 

Profit and Loss, Auditors Report and 

Directors Report for the year ended 31st 
March, 2022. 

   

2. 

Appointment of Director in place of  
Mr. Pramod Kumar Agarwal 

(DIN: 01469533), who retires by rotation 

at this meeting and being eligible, offers 
himself for re-appointment 

   

 

Signed this…… day of……… 20…. 

Signature of shareholder……………………………………. 

Signature of Proxy holder(s)…………………………………………. 

Affix Revenue Stamp not less than Rs. 1/- 

 

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at 

the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of 
the Meeting. 
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ATTENDANCE SLIP  

50th Annual General Meeting- Friday, September 30, 2022 

 Indu Engineering and Textiles Limited  

Reg. office: 12/16A, Nawal Ganj, Nunhai, Agra-282006 

 CIN: U74140MH2006PTC162836  

 

Folio No. /DP ID…………………………………………. 

Client ID/ Ben. A/c……………………………………….. 

No. of shares held………………………………………….. 

I certify that I am a registered shareholder/proxy for the registered Shareholder of the 

Company and hereby record my presence at the 50th Annual General Meeting of the Company 
on Friday, 30th September, 2022 at 3.30 p.m at 12/16A, Nawal Ganj, Nunhai,Agra-282006 

 

Member’s/Proxy’s name in Block Letters…………………………………………………..  

Member’s/Proxy’s Signature………………………………………………………………….  

Note: Please fill this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the hall. 
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LOCATION MAP 

 

 



 

 

 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

(UDIN: 22400976AJXEZK4183) 

 

THE MEMBERS OF  

 

INDU ENGINEERING & TEXTILES LIMITED 

 

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements Opinion 

 

We have audited the financial statements of INDU ENGINEERING & TEXTILES LIMITED(“the 

Company”), which comprise thebalance sheet as at 31st March 2022, and the statement of Profit and 

Loss, and statement of cash flows for theyear then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including 

a summary of significant accounting policiesand other explanatory information. 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

aforesaidfinancial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so 

required andgive a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in 

India, of the state ofaffairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and its financial performance, and its 

cash flows for the year endedon that date. 

 

Basis for Opinion 

 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 

143(10) ofthe Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in 

the Auditor’sResponsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 

independent of theCompany in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of Indiatogether with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 

statements under theprovisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have 

fulfilled our other ethicalresponsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. 

We believe that the audit evidencewe have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

opinion. 

 

Key Audit Matter 

 

Key audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional Judgement were of most significance in our 

audit of financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our 

audit of the financial statements as a whole, and informing our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a  

separate opinion on these matters. We have determined that there are no key audit matters to be 

communicated in our report 

 

S.no Key Audit matter Auditor Response 

1 Nil Nil 

 

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report thereon 

 

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other 



information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the 

financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. 

 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 

form ofassurance conclusion thereon. 

 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 

and, indoing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 

statements or ourknowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  

 

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this 

auditor’sreport, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 

required to report thatfact. We have nothing to report in this regard 

 

 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements  

 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 

Companies Act,2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a 

true and fair view of thefinancial position, financial performance, and cash flows of the Company in 

accordance with the accountingprinciples generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards 

specified under section 133 of the Act. 

 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 

provisionsof the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 

frauds and otherirregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 

judgments and estimates thatare reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 

adequate internal financial controls,that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 

completeness of the accounting records, relevant tothe preparation and presentation of the financial 

statements that give a true and fair view and are free frommaterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or 

error. 

 

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s 

abilityto continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 

the goingconcern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the 

Company or to ceaseoperations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

 

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.  

 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 

freefrom material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 

includes ouropinion. 

 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordancewith SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 

from fraud or errorand are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 

be expected to influencethe economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.  

 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 



skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 

to fraud orerror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 

audit evidence that issufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 

not detecting a materialmisstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 

error, as fraud may involvecollusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 

override of internal control. 

 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures thatare appropriate in the circumstances. 

 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimatesand related disclosures made by management. 

 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, basedon the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 

related to events or conditions thatmay cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 

continue as a going concern. If we conclude that amaterial uncertainty exists, we are required 

to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the relateddisclosures in the financial statements or, 

if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Ourconclusions are based on the 

audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,future events or 

conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 

thedisclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 

events in amanner that achieves fair presentation. 

 

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 

andtiming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 

control thatwe identify during our audit. 

 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 

ethicalrequirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 

matters thatmay reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards. 

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in 

the“Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent 

applicable. 

 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

 

(I)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge  andbelief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

 



(II) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 

far as itappears from our examination of those books. 

 

(III)  The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with 

by this Reportare in agreement with the books of account. 

 

(IV) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards 

specified UnderSection 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 

2014. 

 

(V) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2022 

taken onrecord by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st 

March, 2022 from beingappointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.  

 

(VI) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 

statements of theCompany and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 

separate Report in “ Annexure B “ 

 

(VII) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 

Rule 11 of   TheCompanies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 

our information and according tothe explanations given to us: 

 

(a) The Company has disclosed details regarding pending litigations in sub schedule -1 of 

financial statement however it would have no impacton  its financial position. 

(b) The Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for  

which therewere any material foreseeable losses. 

(c) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 

and ProtectionFund by the Company. 

(d) (i) The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other 

thanasdisclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or 

invested (either fromborrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of 

funds) by the company to or in any otherperson(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 

(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whetherrecorded in writing or otherwise, that 

the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or investin other persons or 

entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company 

(“UltimateBeneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 

Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

 

(ii) The management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other 

than asdisclosedin the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company 

from any person(s) orentity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the 

understanding, whether recorded inwriting or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, 

directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other personsor entities identified in any manner 

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“UltimateBeneficiaries”) or provide any 

guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

 

(iii) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in the  

circumstances,nothing has come to their notice that has caused them to believe that the 

representations under sub-clause(i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement. 

 

(e) The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in contravention of the  



Provisionsof section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

(8) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under Section 197(16) of the 

Act, in  Ouropinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the limit 

prescribed by section 197 formaximum permissible managerial remuneration is not applicable to a 

private limited company. 

 

For P S A & Co., 

Chartered Accountants 

 

 

 

 

(CA Ravinder Goyal) 

(Partner) 

M.No.400976 

 

Dated : 30-05-2022 

Place  : Agra 

 

INDU ENGINEERING & TEXTILES LIMITED 

 “ ANNEXURE A “ 

The Annexure Referred to in paragraph 1 of our Report  on “ Other Legal and Regulatory 

Requirements”we report the following: 

(1) (a)  (A) The Company has proper records related to full particulars including quantitative  

      details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment. 

                   (B) The company is not having any intangible asset. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 

              is not applicable 

 

 (b) In our opinion Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the  

                  management at reasonable intervals. No material discrepancies were noticed on such  

                  verification during the year.  

 

(c)   (A) (i) Title deeds of immovable property not held in the name of the company:- 

        NO SUCH PROPERTY HELD BY THE COMPANY 

    Further The company has not constructed building over land taken on lease 

 

 (d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year.  

 

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any  

      benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and  

      rules made there under.  

 

 (2)  As explained to us, physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals  

  by the management and the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is  



appropriate. No material discrepancies were noticed by management on such verification.  

 

(3) The company has working capital limits amounting Rs. 600 Lakhs , from Canara Banks on the  

basis of security of current assets. The company has disclosed the following in quarterly statement  

as follows : -  

  

Particulars Qtr As per 

Books 

(in Lakhs) 

As Per 

Statement (in 

Lakhs) 

Reason for Difference 

All Stocks 

(Raw 

Material, 

Chemicals 

WIP 

Stores & 

spares) & 

Book 

Debts 

I 788.54 / 

839.27 

416.30 

/524.62 

Difference in stock in on account of raw 

material as slow moving item are not 

considered in stock 

With regard to Book debts only debtors 

which are less than 90 days are being 

disclosed with bank  

Both the disclosure are with regard to 

banking norms 

II 769.42 / 

900.57 

424.43 / 

554.92 

III 795.21 / 

836.94 

457.73 

/518.39 

IV 786.94 / 

787.84 

422.47 / 

505.98 

 

 (4)  During the year, the company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or  

  security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to  

companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties 

 

 (5)  The company has not made any loans, investments, guarantees and security on which provisions  

of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable.  

 

 (6)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has  

not accepted any deposits from public.  

 

(7)  As explained to us, the Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost 

records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.  

 

(8) (a) The Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident 

Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income tax, Sales Tax, Wealth tax, Service tax, Duty of 

Customs, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, GST, Cess and other statutory dues with the 

appropriate authorities to the extent applicable to it. There are no undisputed amounts payable in 

respect of income tax, wealth tax, service tax, sales tax, value added tax, duty of customs, duty of 

excise or cess which have remained outstanding as at March 31, 2022 for a period of more than 6 

months from the date they became payable.  

      (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are not any statutory dues 

referred in sub- clause (a) which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. Therefore, 

the provisions of Clause (vii)(b) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the Company. 

 

 (9)      In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no any 

transaction not recorded in the books of account have been surrendered or disclosed as income 

during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). 

 

 (10) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 

not defaulted in repayment of any loan or other borrowings or any interest due thereon to any 

lender. 

  



Nature of 

Borrowing, 

including debt 

Securities 

Name of 

Lender 

Amount not 

paid on due 

date 

Whether 

Principal or 

Interest 

No. of days 

delay or 

unpaid 

Remarks 

(if any) 

------------NIL---------------------- 

 

         (b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has 

not been a declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender. 

 

        (c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the loans were 

applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.  

   

Nature of 

Fund raised 

Name of 

lender 

Amount 

Diverted 

Purpose for which 

amount was 

sanctioned 

Purpose for 

which amount 

was utilized 

Remarks 

------------NIL---------------------- 

 

        (d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no funds    

              raised on short term basis which have been utilised for long term purposes.  

 

        (e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has 

not taken any funds / Loan  from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of 

its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures or on on the pledge of securities held in its 

subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. 

 

 (11) (a) The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer    

               (including debt instruments). 

 

 

        (b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has 

made preferential allotment or private placement of shares during the year and the requirements of 

section 42 and section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with and the funds 

raised have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised.  

 

(12)  (a) We have not noticed any case of fraud by the company or any fraud on the Company by its 

officers or employees during the year. The management has also not reported any case of fraud 

during the year. 

 

         (b) During the year no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been 

filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and 

Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.  

 

         (c) As auditor, we did not receive any whistle- blower complaint during the year.  

 

(13)  The company is not a Nidhi Company 

 

(14)  As per the information and explanations received to us all transactions with the related parties are 

in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act where applicable, and the details have 

been disclosed in the financial statements, etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

Identification of related parties were made and provided by the management of the company. 

 



 (15)  The company is not covered by section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, related to appointment 

of internal auditor of the company. Therefore, the company is not required to appointed any 

internal auditor.  

 

 (16) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected 

with him for the year under review.  

 

(17) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 

Act, 1934.  

 

        (b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities 

during the year. 

 

        (c) The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the 

Reserve Bank of India. 

 

        (d) As per the information and explanations received, the group does not have any CIC as part of the 

group. 

 

 (18)    The company has not incurred cash loss in current financial year,  as well in immediately 

preceding financial year.  

 

(19)    There has been no resignation of the previous statutory auditors during the year.  

 

(20)     On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and 

payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, the 

auditor’s knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that 

no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is capable of meeting 

its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one 

year from the balance sheet date. 

 

 

 (21) There is not liability of the company under the provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 

relating to Corporate Social Responsibility. 

 

(22) The company does not have any subsidiary company. Therefore, the company does not require to 

prepare consolidated financial statement. 

 

For PSA & Co., 

Chartered Accountants 

 

 

 

(CA – Ravinder Goyal) 

(Partner) 

M.No.400976 

 

Dated : 30-05-2022 

Place  : Agra 

 



INDU ENGINEERING & TEXTILES LIMITED 
 

Annexure ‘B’ 

Report on Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of INDU ENGINEERING & 

TEXTILES LIMITED. as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of 

the Company for the year ended on that date. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 

based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 

essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 

Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These 

responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 

controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 

including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 

frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 

reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 

reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 

Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on 

Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 

2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of 

Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 

Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 

the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial 

reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.  

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 

financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 

financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 

controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 

evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 

procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 

misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 

company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that  

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;  

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts 

and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of 

management and directors of the company; and  

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, 

use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial 

statements. 
 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error 

or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial 

controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 

over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system 

over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating 

effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 

by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 

Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India. 

 

For PSA & Co., 

Chartered Accountants 

 

 

 

(CA – Ravinder Goyal) 

(Partner) 

M.No.400976 

 

Dated : 30-05-2022 

Place  : Agra 



INDU ENGINEERING & TEXTILES  LIMITED, AGRA 
 

NOTE “14”:  NOTES ON ACCOUNTS 

 

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2022 

 

A. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: 

 

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

 

I. Basis of Accounting 

The accounts have been prepared on the historical cost convention on accrual basis, in  with the 

generally accepted Accounting Standards referred .to in Section 133 of the said Act 

 

Accounting policies not specifically referred to otherwise are consistent and in consonance with 

generally accounting principle  

 

II.   Revenue Recognition 

a. Sales are accounted for on dispatch of goods to customers and are net of sales return, rate 

difference and discounts etc., where ever applicable  

b. Revenue and Expenses are being recognized in accordance with  Guidance note on accrual 

basis of  accounting issued by ICAI except Gratuity 

c.   The company liability towards Gratuity to the employees is covered by a group gratuity policy    

       with  the Life Insurance Corporation of India  

d.  As reported by the management there is no contingent liability 

e.  Figure of the previous year are re – arranged / re – grouped as required   necessary 

 

2. DEPRECIATION 

Method of charging Depreciation has been changed as per  Schedule II of Company Act 2013, 

Depreciation is provided on Written down Value method in terms of Schedule II of Company Act 

2013 Company Act, 2013. 

 

3. FIXED ASSETS 

 Fixed are stated at cost of acquisition less depreciation 

 

4. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT 

  Contribution to Provident Fund, ESI, Gratuity etc has been made in respect of Employees. 

 

5. BORROWING COST 

Interest is treated as ‘Periodic Cost’ and is charged to Profit and loss Account in the year incurred. 

 

6. ACCOUNTING FOR TAXES ON INCOME 

Provision for Income Tax is made in accordance with the Provision of Income Tax 1961,   In 

accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (IND-AS)-12, ”Income Taxes”, Deferred Tax 

resulting from time differences between book & tax profit is accounting for at the current rate of 

tax to the extent of timing differences are expected to crystallize. Deferred Assets are recognized 

only when there is virtual certainty of sufficient profit to realize such assets 

 

7. IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS 

If the carrying amount of fixed assets exceeds the recoverable amount on the reporting date the 

carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is measured at the 



highest of the net selling price and the value in use determined by present value estimated future 

cash flow. As the Company has no impairment of assets the disclosure requirements as prescribed  

in the “ Indian Accounting  Standard (Ind AS)- 36 on Impairment of Assets” issued by The 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India is not applicable 

 

8. CURRENT ASSETS  

In the opinion of Management All items of current assets are stated in the Balance Sheet if 

realized in the ordinary course of business after adequate provision for any diminution in values 

unless otherwise stated. 

 

9. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES: 

There are no contingent liabilities as certified by the management. 

 

10. DIRECTORS REMUNERATION 

 

The company has paid or provided amount to the Directors during the Year ended 31.03.2021 as:-

           

Name Remuneration Perquisites Total 

Shri Pramod Kumar Agarwal 3,00,000.00 30,000.00 3,30,000.00 

Shri Gaurav agarwal 6,00,000.00 Nil 6,00,000.00 

Smt. Manju Rani Agarwal 1,20,000.00 Nil 1,20,000.00 

 

11. AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION: 
   

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 

Audit Fees 30,000.00 30,000.00 

 

12.      SEGMENT REPORTING: 

The Company has only one segment of Manufacturing and Trading of CI Casting and accordingly 

the disclosure requirements as prescribed in the “Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) -108 on 

Segment Reporting” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India is not applicable.  

 

13. DIVIDEND 
 The Company has not Distributed any Dividend during the Current Financial Year 21 - 22. 

 

14.  EXPORT TURNOVER 
 There is No Export Sales during the Current Year F.Y. 2021-22. 

  ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: 

S. 

No 
PARTICULARS 

AMOUNT 

(Rs)  2021-

22 

AMOUNT 

(Rs) 2020-

21 

1. C.I.F. Value Of Import Nil Nil 

2. Expenditure in foreign currency during the financial year Nil Nil 

3 Earning in foreign exchange Nil Nil 

4. Percentage of Domestic products used 100% 100% 



 

15. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE  

Details of Disclosure as required by “Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-24 on Related Party 

Disclosure” issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountant of India” are as under:- 

 

A) Name of Related Parties and description of Relationship : 

 

  a) Related Concern 

     i)  A.G. Shares & Securities Limited. 

  

 

  b)    Key Managerial Personnel 

   i)  Parmod Kumar Agarwal 

   ii) Gaurav Agarwal 

   iii) Manju Rani Agarwal 

 

B) Transaction with Related Parties: 

 

Transaction Key Management Personnel Associates 

Remuneration 10,20,000.00 Nil 

Perquisites                                30,000.00                     Nil 

              The Schedules referred to in Balance Sheet form an integral part of the accounts. 

 

 

 

For and on behalf of the Board                                        In terms of our separate report  

                                                       of even  date attached 

 

                                                                                                                  For P S A & Co., 

Pramod Agarwal            Gaurav  Agarwal         Chartered Accountants 

   (DIRECTOR)                     (DIRECTOR)               

   DIN:01469533                    DIN: 00037004 

 

                    (CA – Ravinder Goyal) 

Date    : 30-05-2022                                    Partner 

                                                                                                                             M. No.400976  
 

5. Amount remitted during year in foreign currency on account dividend Nil Nil 



(figures in Rs.)

Particulars Note No.  As at 31st March, 2022  As at 31st March, 2021 

I. ASSETS

(A).NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Plant and Equipment 

(i) Property,Plant and Equipement 1 9,02,32,288.64                   8,74,15,865.73                   
(ii) Non-Current Investments 1,17,887.50                       1,17,887.50                        

9,03,50,176.14                 8,75,33,753.23                 

(B).CURRENT ASSETS
(i) Inventories 2 7,86,93,990.00                   7,68,62,170.00                   
(ii)Trade Receivables 3 7,87,83,792.61                   8,23,31,632.34                   
(iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 4 27,76,105.82                     48,35,064.03                      
(iv)  Short TermLoans and Advances 5 2,19,00,815.61                   2,06,78,070.01                   
(iii) Other Current Assets 6 7,96,448.21                       8,61,737.14                        

18,29,51,152.25               18,55,68,673.52               

TOTAL 27,33,01,328.39               27,31,02,426.75               

I. LIABILITIES

(A).EQUITY
(i) Equity Share Capital 7                    5,14,52,900.00                     5,14,52,900.00 
(ii) Other Equity 8                    3,12,81,456.63                     3,07,84,898.86 

8,27,34,356.63                 8,22,37,798.86                 

(B). NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
(i) Long Term Borrowings 9                    9,15,95,720.87                     8,86,20,356.93 

     (ii) Deferred Tax Liabilities                       66,06,697.34 61,64,671.17                      

9,82,02,418.21                 9,47,85,028.10                 

(C). CURRENT LIABILITIES

       (i) Short Term Borrowing 10                    6,70,60,558.02                     7,02,93,543.67 

(ii) Trade Payables 11                    2,45,63,892.43                     2,34,53,871.33 

      (iii) Short Term Provisions 12                         7,40,103.10                        23,32,184.79 
9,23,64,553.55                 9,60,79,599.79                 

TOTAL 27,33,01,328.39               27,31,02,426.75               

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory 

information 13
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the  financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached             For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For P S A & CO.           of INDU ENGINEERING & TEXTILES LIMITED

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No.: 010685C

(Pramod Agarwal)              Gaurav Agarwal
( Managing Director )                             (Director )                            
DIN:01469533           DIN:- 00037004

(CA Ravinder Goyal)
  Partner
M.no. 400976

UDIN:-22400976AJXEZK4183
Date:- 30-05-2022 Ajay Kumar Singh Rupendra Kumar Kushwaha
Place:-Agra Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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INDU ENGINEERING & TEXTILES LTD.
12/16 A NAWALGANJ NUNHAI ,AGRA, UP-282006 IN

Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements as on 31st March, 2022

Note 2: Inventories 

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2022  As at 31st March, 2021 

 Raw Material 5,11,94,155.00                        5,58,20,640.00                      
 Finish Stock 2,67,34,090.00                        2,02,62,909.00                      
 Work in Progress 7,65,745.00                             7,78,621.00                          

  (At cost or NRV whichever is lower)
7,86,93,990.00                      7,68,62,170.00                   

Note 3: Trade receivables 

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2022  As at 31st March, 2021 

Unsecured, considered good (Sub Schedule-2)
Debts outsanding 7,87,83,792.61                        8,23,31,632.34                      

7,87,83,792.61                      8,23,31,632.34                   

Note 4: Cash & Cash Equivalents

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2022  As at 31st March, 2021 

Bank of India -                                         11,000.00                             
Bank of India 573 -                                         10,000.00                             
HDFC Bank (5889) -                                    4,96,147.14                     
Canara Bank-0378201003117 5,152.80                            5,152.80                          
Canara Bank-0378201003213-New Share 4,50,000.00                        -                                  
Canara Bank (FBD 4839) 18,797.94                               18,797.94                             
FDR with Canara Bank 70,790.00                               95,322.57                             
FDR With SIDBI -                                         12,50,000.00                        
FDR With SIDBI - II 16,50,000.00                           16,50,000.00                        
FDR-Accounts Office Nagar Nigam 1,00,000.00                             1,00,000.00                          
FDR with HDFC Bank -                                         1,00,671.00                          
Insurance Claimable 3,66,356.00                             3,66,356.00                          
Cash in Hand 98,217.00                           6,75,625.00                     

 EEFC A/C (2341241100008) -                                         39,199.50                             
 UBI A/c 305601010291539 10,292.08                               10,292.08                             
Canara Bank (Unpaid Dividend A/c 0378201003308) 6,500.00                                 6,500.00                               

27,76,105.82                         48,35,064.03                       

Note 5:  Loans and Advances
(UnSecured , Considered Good)

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2022  As at 31st March, 2021 

a) Security & Deposit (Sub Schedule-3) 15,79,644.00                           15,79,644.00                        
b) Advance Recoverable in Cash/Kind (Sub Schedule- 4) 5,34,684.61                             3,25,668.01                          
c) Prompt Planners- LLP 1,97,86,487.00                   1,87,72,758.00                 

2,19,00,815.61                      2,06,78,070.01                   
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Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements as on 31st March, 2022

Note 6: Other Current Assets

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2022  As at 31st March, 2021 

Accured Interest 5,73,290.21                             8,57,955.14                          

GST Receivable 1,33,589.00                             3,782.00                               

GST Penalty 87,406.00                               -                                       

GST (RCM) 2,163.00                                 -                                       

7,96,448.21                           8,61,737.14                         

Note 9: Long Term Borrowings

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2022  As at 31st March, 2021 

   TERM LOAN FROM BANKS - SECURED LOAN
      (Net off Installment Payable within next one Year)

Canara Bank  - Loan 120 Lacs 0378755000040 53,30,437.00                           92,48,543.00                        

ICICI Bank Loan-11875 1,32,33,068.00                        1,41,13,473.00                      

ICICI Bank Loan-11889 1,59,90,285.00                        1,70,13,179.00                      

Indusind Bank Loan 4,00,18,103.87                        3,96,89,208.93                      

SIDBI-II 33,37,000.00                           45,73,000.00                        

Aditya Birla Housing Finance Ltd.-21503 16,54,101.00                           17,11,705.00                        

Aditya Birla Housing Finance Ltd.-21496 18,64,445.00                           19,26,898.00                        

Canara Bank  - Loan 60 Lacs -170002854923 60,00,000.00                           -                                       
Sub Total 8,74,27,439.87                      8,82,76,006.93                   

Other Financial Liabilities  - Unsecured Loans
Loans from Others

Gaurav Agarwal 32,99,963.00                           -                                       

Manju Rani Agarwal 2,03,318.00                             1,94,350.00                          

Meenal Agarwal 5,15,000.00                             -                                       

Ajay Kumar Agarwal 1,50,000.00                             1,50,000.00                          

Sub Total 41,68,281.00                         3,44,350.00                         

Total 9,15,95,720.87                      8,86,20,356.93                   

Note 10 : Short term Borrowings

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2022  As at 31st March, 2021 

(i) Borrowing from Banks  - Secured
Working Capital Limit 

CANARA BANK 50460 5,72,28,847.26                        6,08,50,878.61                      

CANARA BANK - TOD -                                         2,77,114.82                          
SIDBI -                                         11,46,400.00                        

Sub Total 5,72,28,847.26                      6,22,74,393.43                   

(ii) Current maturities of Long term borrowings 
Canara Bank  - Loan 120 Lacs 0378755000040 39,18,112.00                           27,51,457.00                        

Canara Bank ((Honda City 0378603000280) -                                         3,34,417.00                          

ICICI BANK LOAN - 11875 10,08,533.00                           9,26,168.00                          

ICICI BANK LOAN - 11889 11,75,044.00                           10,79,081.00                        

INDUSIND ABANK 23,41,318.76                           18,64,161.24                        

SIDBI-II 12,36,000.00                           9,27,000.00                          

ADITYA BIRLA - 1496 80,554.00                               72,200.00                             

ADITYA BIRLA 1503 72,149.00                               64,666.00                             

Canara Bank  - Loan 60 Lacs -170002854923 -                                         -                                       
Sub Total 98,31,710.76                         80,19,150.24                       

TOTAL 6,70,60,558.02                      7,02,93,543.67                   
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Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements as on 31st March, 2022

Note 11: Trade Payables

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2022  As at 31st March, 2021 

Sundry Creditors  (Sub Scheule-1) 2,45,63,892.43                      2,34,53,871.33                   
{No interest has been  paid to the buyer in terms of section 

16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006)}
2,45,63,892.43                      2,34,53,871.33                   

Note 12: SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2022  As at 31st March, 2021 

Other payables
Bonus Payable 1,26,321.00                             1,22,458.00                          
ESI Payable 5,683.00                                 6,848.00                               
Provident Fund Payable 28,416.00                               37,042.00                             
Wages & Salary Payable 2,23,702.00                             1,58,177.00                          
TDS Payable 21-22 16,606.00                               9,571.00                               
TCS Payable -                                         24,978.79                             
Audit Fees Payable 60,000.00                               30,000.00                             
Preeti Jain and Associates 68,108.10                               84,882.00                             
GST Payable 2,163.00                                 17,46,086.00                        
Dividend Payable                                   6,500.00                                6,500.00 
Leave with Wages Payable 2,02,604.00                             1,05,642.00                          

                            7,40,103.10                         23,32,184.79 

Sub Schedule - 3 : Security & Deposit

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2022  As at 31st March, 2021 

Delhi Development Authority 20,000.00                               20,000.00                             
Hindustan Times House 14,894.00                               14,894.00                             
Security Deposit with Govt. Department 4,31,750.00                             4,31,750.00                          
Security Deposit with Torrent Power 10,53,000.00                           10,53,000.00                        
RO Security 60,000.00                               60,000.00                             

TOTAL 15,79,644.00                         15,79,644.00                       

Sub Schedule - 4 : Advance Recoverable in Cash or Kind

Particulars As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021
TDS 2019-20 -                                         1,11,553.00                          
TCS 2020-21 -                                    40,059.01                        
TDS 2020-21 -                                    91,710.00                        
TDS Receivable (GST) 7,920.00                            -                                  
TDS Receivable 20-21 91,710.00                           -                                  
TDS Receivable 21-22 2,09,161.00                        -                                  
Prepaid insurance 1,77,301.00                             82,346.00                             
TCS Receivable 20-21 40,059.01                               -                                       
TCS Receivable 21-22 8,533.60                                 -                                       

5,34,684.61                           3,25,668.01                         

INDU ENGINEERING & TEXTILES LTD.
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Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements as on 31st March, 2022

Sub Schedule - 5 :  Additional Regulatory Information

     b) Charges has been duly registered with ROC within the statutory period
     C) Following Ratios to be disclosed
           (a) Current Ratio, 1.98                                        1.93                                     
           (b) Debt-Equity Ratio, 0.30                                        0.30                                     
           (c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio,
          (d) Return on Equity Ratio, 0.01                                        (0.03)                                    
          (e) Inventory turnover ratio, 0.53                                        0.62                                     
          (f) Trade Receivables turnover ratio, 0.53                                        0.67                                     
         (g) Trade payables turnover ratio, 0.17                                        0.19                                     
         (h) Net capital turnover ratio, 0.56                                        0.67                                     
          (i) Net profit ratio, 0.01                                        (0.02)                                    
          (j) Return on Capital employed, 0.00                                        (0.01)                                    
         (k) Return on investment. 0.01                                        (0.03)                                    

     a) Company has never been  declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender



Particulars Note No.
 For the period 

31st March, 2022 

 For the period 

31st March, 2021 

Income

Revenue from operations 14 14,85,53,462.34            12,32,25,439.44       

Other income 15 3,92,972.80                  6,87,485.44             

Total  Income 14,89,46,435.14          12,39,12,924.88     

Expenses:

Cost of materials Consumed 16 9,61,35,595.81              7,23,38,974.15         

Changes in inventories of stock in trade 17 (64,58,305.00)               (5,78,238.08)            

Employee benefit expenses 18 56,42,989.49                57,76,640.00            

Finance costs 19 1,16,61,024.93              1,11,47,711.15         

Depreciation and amortization expenses 1 33,46,580.09                30,31,136.30            

Other expenses 20 3,76,54,475.88              3,49,95,415.03         

Total expenses 14,79,82,361.20          12,67,11,638.55     

Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and income tax 9,64,073.94                 (27,98,713.67)        

Exceptional item(net of tax) -                           

Profit/(Loss) before tax 9,64,073.94                 (27,98,713.67)        

Tax Expense:

Current tax 25,490.00                     -                          

Deferred tax 4,42,026.17                  3,97,774.11             

Provision tax -                               19,10,673.71            

Profit/(Loss) for the period(Continuing Operations) 9,64,073.94                  (27,98,713.67)          

Profit/(Loss) for the period(Discontinuing Operations) -                           

Total Profit/(Loss) for the period(Continuing + Discontinuing Operations) 9,64,073.94                 (27,98,713.67)        

Earnings per equity share: NA (0.54)                       

Basic NA (0.54)                       

Diluted

Balance Brought Forward from Last Year 24,39,806.47               75,46,967.96          

Less: Interim Dividend -                          

Less: Tax on Dividend -                          

Add: Profit Available for Appropriation 4,96,557.77                 (51,07,161.49)          

BALANCE CARRIED TO BALANCESHEET 29,36,364.24                24,39,806.47          

Significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the  financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For P S A & CO.  of INDU ENGINEERING & TEXTILES LIMITED

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No.: 010685C

(Pramod Agarwal)              Gaurav Agarwal

( Managing Director )                             (Director )                            

DIN:01469533           DIN:- 00037004

(CA Ravinder Goyal)

  Partner

M.no. 400976

Date:- 30-05-2022

Place:-Agra

UDIN:-22400976AJXEZK4183 Ajay Kumar Singh Rupendra Kumar Kushwaha

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements as on 31st March, 2022

Note 14: Revenue from Operations

Particular
 For the period 

31st March, 2022 

 For the period 

31st March, 2021 

i) Sales
          Sale Domestic

                 Sales GST @5% -                              84,320.00                         
                 Sales GST @18% 14,10,31,340.87           11,80,61,833.82               
                 Sales GST @28% 1,28,21,357.97             1,07,29,664.24                 
                 Sales GST @12% 4,56,000.00                 6,16,000.00                      

GROSS SALES              15,43,08,698.84                   12,94,91,818.06 

          Less : Sales Return 6,032.40                                                                  -   
          Less : Sales Return GST 18% 55,06,859.40                   62,58,814.20                        
          Less : Sales Return GST 28% 2,42,344.70                     41,648.84                            

NET SALES              14,85,53,462.34                   12,31,91,355.02 

ii) Other Receipt from Operation
 Rate Difference -                       34,084.42                 

SUB-TOTAL                                       -                                34,084.42 

TOTAL 14,85,53,462.34            12,32,25,439.44                 

Note 15: Other Income

Particular
 For the period 

31st March, 2022 

 For the period 

31st March, 2021 

Profit from Future & Option 70,309.80                 6,22,912.84                  

Casting Machining charges 6,800.00                  60,800.00                     
Freight 18% -                          3,740.00                       
Dividend 54.00                       32.60                            
Interest on Income Tax 9,030.00                  -                               
Subsidy Received 15% 3,06,779.00              -                               

3,92,972.80                    6,87,485.44                        

Note 16: Cost of Materials Consumed

Particular
 For the period 

31st March, 2022 

 For the period 

31st March, 2021 

Opening Stock of Raw Material 5,58,20,640.00                5,65,53,640.24                    
Less: Home Consumption for Moulds & Pattern. (38,25,670.00)                 (34,50,792.00)                      

Purchases                                                                      Sub Schedule 6 9,53,34,780.81                7,50,56,765.91                    
Closing Stock of Raw Material 5,11,94,155.00         5,58,20,640.00              

9,61,35,595.81              7,23,38,974.15                   

Note 17: Changes in Inventories

Particular
 For the period 

31st March, 2022 

 For the period 

31st March, 2021 

  Change in Inventory                                                                 Sub schedule 7 (64,58,305.00)                 (5,78,238.08)                        
(64,58,305.00)                (5,78,238.08)                       

Note 18: Employee Benefit Expenses

Particular
 For the period 

31st March, 2022 

 For the period 

31st March, 2021 

Salary A/c 24,17,838.49        24,25,570.00             
Salary & Wages Through Contractor A/c (JP Associates) 16,49,120.00        18,50,480.00             
Director Salary 10,20,000.00        9,35,000.00               
Director HRA 30,000.00             27,500.00                 
Leave with wages -                       1,05,642.00               
Leave Salary A/c 1,04,277.00          -                           
Bonus 1,16,654.00          1,22,458.00               
Fooding & Beverages Exp. 17,070.00             18,201.00                 
Production Incentive 3,000.00               3,300.00                   
Provident Fund 2,12,372.00          1,97,513.00               
ESI 64,482.00             56,582.00                 
Gratuity -                       26,401.00                 
Labour Welfare expenses 2,176.00               2,493.00                   
House Rent Expenses to Employee 6,000.00               5,500.00                   

56,42,989.49                  57,76,640.00                      
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Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements as on 31st March, 2022

Note 19: Finance Costs

Particular
 For the period 

31st March, 2022 

 For the period 

31st March, 2021 

Bank Charges & Commission 2,35,081.37         6,30,486.58               
Other Interest                                                                     1,14,25,943.56                1,05,17,224.57                    

1,16,61,024.93              1,11,47,711.15                   

Note 20: Other Expenses

Particular
 For the period 

31st March, 2022 

 For the period 

31st March, 2021 

  Manufacturing Expenses                                                Sub Schedule 8 3,38,04,263.05                3,23,03,853.59                    
  Administrative Expenses                                              Sub Schedulle 9 23,55,860.29                   21,38,706.98                       

  Selling & Distribution Expenses                                   Sub schedule 10 14,94,352.54                   5,52,854.46                         
3,76,54,475.88              3,49,95,415.03                   

Sub Schedule - 6: Purchase

Particular
 For the period 

31st March, 2022 

 For the period 

31st March, 2021 

PURCHASE (U.P.) 9,15,09,110.81                7,50,56,765.91                    
PURCHASE CAPITAL GOODS -                                      

TOTAL PURCHASE 9,15,09,110.81              7,50,56,765.91                   

PURCHASE 
Purchase GST 5% 31,73,735.00        33,49,154.00             
Purchase GST 12% 1,31,903.20          1,41,504.29               
Purchase GST 18% 8,70,93,543.12     7,07,20,934.22          
Purchase GST 28% 5,27,610.06          6,75,573.25               
Purchase GST 18% (Rejection) 4,10,355.72          -                           

Other Purchase 1,71,963.71          1,69,600.15               
9,15,09,110.81              7,50,56,765.91                   

Sub Schedule - 7: Change in Inventory

Particular
 For the period 

31st March, 2022 

 For the period 

31st March, 2021 
Closing Stock

Finish Goods 2,67,34,090.00  2,02,62,909.00                    
Work in Progress 7,65,745.00      7,78,621.00                         

2,74,99,835.00              2,10,41,530.00                   

Opening Stock
Finish Goods 2,02,62,909.00                1,95,33,121.92                    
Work in Progress 7,78,621.00                     9,30,170.00                         

2,10,41,530.00              2,04,63,291.92                   

Change in Stock (64,58,305.00)                (5,78,238.08)                       

Sub Schedule 8: Manufacturing Expenses

Particular
 For the period 

31st March, 2022 

 For the period 

31st March, 2021 
a) Manufacturing Expenses

Machine Running Expenses 1,600.00       2,41,223.63                         

Freight & Cartage(Inward) Taxable 10,99,793.00 13,34,816.00     
Freight & Cartage(Inward) Exempted 59,725.00     60,974.20          
Laboratory Testing Expenses -               75,099.00          
Machining Charges -               1,89,808.00       
Casting Expenses 91,057.00     1,20,773.00       

Factory Expenses 19,062.00     2,03,342.00       

Job Work -               74,200.00          

Loading and Unloading 73,475.00             3,99,167.76               

Testing / Calibration Charges 55,469.05             

b) Power & Fuel 2,21,13,674.00        1,97,50,121.00             

c) Purchase of Natural Gas 6,73,105.00             5,74,094.00                  

d) Labour & Wages 96,17,303.00           92,80,235.00                

3,38,04,263.05              3,23,03,853.59                   

INDU ENGINEERING & TEXTILES LTD.
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Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements as on 31st March, 2022

Sub Schedule 9: Adminstrative  Expenses

Particular
 For the period 

31st March, 2022 

 For the period 

31st March, 2021 

Audit Fees -                          30,000.00                     
Computer Repair & Maintenance 53,175.47                50,757.43                     
Conveyance Exp. 86,766.00                72,052.00                     
Electric Repair & Maintenance 1,26,759.74             2,06,454.99                  
General Expenses 69,244.55                11,861.86                     
GST Exp. 24,928.00                -                               
GST Interest -                          24,928.00                     
Insurance Expenses 1,11,231.00                     1,24,169.00                         

Internal Audit Exp 27,000.00                27,000.00                     
Legal & Professional Expenses 2,51,553.34             2,03,099.70                  
 Repair & Maintainence(Plant & Machinary) 76,480.00                -                                      

Office Maintenance Expenses 29,176.28                33,983.00                     
Pattern Repair cost 31,000.00                40,000.00                     
Postage & Courier Exp. 6,295.00                  5,759.00                       
Printing & Stationary Exp. 17,074.00                42,013.00                     
Provident Fund (Administration Charges) 8,492.00                  8,010.00                       
Rent ( RO) 1,20,000.00             -                               
Rate Difference 2,85,593.91             -                               
Rent Rates & Taxes -                          3,80,525.00                  
Repair and Maintenance (Others) 4,28,413.00             3,46,201.00                  
Security Service Expenses 3,44,320.00             4,71,984.00                  
Statutary Audit 30,000.00                -                               
Telephone Expenses 21,880.00                21,508.00                     
Travelling Expenses 83,695.00                38,401.00                     
Material Rework 1,22,783.00             -                                      

23,55,860.29                  21,38,706.98                      

Sub Schedule 10:Selling & Distribution Expenses

Particular
 For the period 

31st March, 2022 

 For the period 

31st March, 2021 

Advertisment Expenses 9,336.00                  90,792.00                     
Sales promotion Expenses 6,000.00                  -                               
Freight Outward (Taxable) 12,84,348.00            3,61,827.00                  
Freight Outward (Exempted) 1,92,888.54              69,021.06                     
Packing & Fwd Expenses 1,780.00                  31,214.40                     

14,94,352.54                  5,52,854.46                        



FIGURE AS ON FIGURE AS ON 
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

1. CASH FLOW FROM / (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit Before Tax and extraordinary Items : 9,64,073.94               (27,98,713.67)            
Adjustment for :

Depreciation 33,46,580.09             30,31,136.30             
Loss on Sale of Assets -                            -                           
Profit on Sale of Assets -                            -                           
Interest Income -                            -                           
Interest Expenses 1,14,25,943.56          1,05,17,224.57          

Operating profit before working capital changes 1,57,36,597.59          1,07,49,647.20          
Increase/Decrease in sundry debtors 35,47,839.73             (12,52,751.34)            
Increase/Decrease in Inventories (18,31,820.00)            1,54,762.16               
Increase/decrease in Loans & Advance (12,22,745.60)            33,62,676.99             
Increase/decrease in Other Current Assets 65,288.93                  (86,750.00)                
Increase/Decrease in Sundry Creditors 11,10,021.10             72,60,297.36             
Increase/Decrease in Working Capital Limit from Bank (32,32,985.65)            (59,21,807.65)            
Increase/Decrease in Other Current Liabilities (15,92,081.69)            (29,55,335.50)            

Cash generated form operations Before Extraordinary Items 1,25,80,114.41          1,13,10,739.22          

Extraordinary Items:
Less:Tax paid 25,490.00                  -                           
Less: Provision for Tax -                            19,10,673.71             

Net Cash from Operating Activities (A) 1,25,54,624.41        94,00,065.51          

2 .CASH FLOW FROM / (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Fixed Assets (61,63,003.00)            (1,12,46,061.00)         

Net Cash from / (used in) Investing Activities (B) (61,63,003.00)         (1,12,46,061.00)      

3. CASH FLOW FROM / (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from from Secured Loan (8,48,567.06)              1,47,77,767.57          
Proceeds from from Unsecured Loan 38,23,931.00             -                           
Interest paid (1,14,25,943.56)         (1,05,17,224.57)         

NET CASH FROM / (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) (84,50,579.62)         42,60,543.00          

Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)=D (20,58,958.21)          24,14,547.51           
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year (E) 48,35,064.03           24,20,516.52           

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year (D+E) 27,76,105.82           48,35,064.03          

As per our report of even date attached
For P S A & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.: 010685C

(Pramod Agarwal)              Gaurav Agarwal
( Managing Director )                             (Director )                            
DIN:01469533           DIN:- 00037004

(CA Ravinder Goyal)
  Partner
M.no. 400976
Date:- 30-05-2022
Place:-Agra
UDIN:-22400976AJXEZK4183 Ajay Kumar Singh Rupendra Kumar Kushwaha

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022

 of INDU ENGINEERING & TEXTILES LIMITED
 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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NOTE 1 :  PROPERTY,PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Rate As on Addition/ As on Up to Adjustment For the Year Up to As on As on 
01.04.2021  Deletion 31.03.2022 31.03.2021 21- 22 31.03.2022 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

LAND -                    1,98,00,000.00                    -                                       1,98,00,000.00                    -                                      -                               -                                      -                         1,98,00,000.00                 1,98,00,000.00                 

BUILDING A/C 3.17                  1,23,21,199.67                    -                                       1,23,21,199.67                    40,59,877.00                       -                               2,61,884.00                         43,21,761.00          79,99,438.67                    82,61,322.67                    
CAR 11.88                51,06,646.39                       -                                       51,06,646.39                       30,16,238.00                       -                               2,48,341.00                         32,64,579.00          18,42,067.39                    20,90,408.39                    

MOTOR CYCLE 9.50                  1,86,922.05                         -                                       1,86,922.05                         1,16,453.00                         -                               6,694.00                              1,23,147.00            63,775.05                         70,469.05                         

COMPUTER & SOFTWARE 31.67                36,057.00                            -                                       36,057.00                            30,179.00                            -                               1,845.00                              32,024.00               4,033.00                           5,878.00                           

ELECTRIC FITTING 9.50                  4,88,949.57                         -                                       4,88,949.57                         3,76,125.00                         -                               10,718.00                            3,86,843.00            1,02,106.57                      1,12,824.57                      

FURNITURE 9.50                  26,153.77                            -                                       26,153.77                            20,119.00                            -                               573.00                                 20,692.00               5,461.77                           6,034.77                           

PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT EXP 5.28                  11,29,506.47                       -                                       11,29,506.47                       5,75,238.00                         -                               29,265.00                            6,04,503.00            5,25,003.47                      5,54,268.47                      

WATER SOFTENING PLANT 6.33                  79,797.09                            -                                       79,797.09                            38,806.00                            -                               2,594.00                              41,400.00               38,397.09                         40,991.09                         

SCOOTER 9.50                  1,60,083.99                         -                                       1,60,083.99                         66,022.00                            -                               8,935.00                              74,957.00               85,126.99                         94,061.99                         

OFFICE EQUIPMENT -                    59,186.00                            66,221.00                             1,25,407.00                         13,541.00                            -                               16,648.69                            30,189.69               95,217.31                         45,645.00                         

PLANT & MACHINARY 4.75                  4,04,61,608.15                    49,24,494.00                        4,53,86,102.15                    1,05,85,772.59                    -                               14,57,209.09                       1,20,42,981.68       3,33,43,120.47                 2,98,75,835.56                 

SOLAR PLANT GENERATING SYSTEM (10KW) 6.33                  8,78,600.00                         -                                       8,78,600.00                         70,557.00                            51,149.00                            1,21,706.00            7,56,894.00                      8,08,043.00                      

CUPOLA BHATTI 4.75                  33,78,147.68                       -                                       33,78,147.68                       15,82,814.00                       -                               85,278.00                            16,68,092.00          17,10,055.68                    17,95,333.68                    

FURNACE BHATTI 4.75                  10,61,064.71                       -                                       10,61,064.71                       4,97,156.00                         -                               26,786.00                            5,23,942.00            5,37,122.71                      5,63,908.71                      

COMPRESSOR 4.75                  7,28,693.60                         -                                       7,28,693.60                         3,15,677.00                         -                               19,618.00                            3,35,295.00            3,93,398.60                      4,13,016.60                      

GENERATOR 4.75                  57,82,453.83                       -                                       57,82,453.83                       20,50,161.00                       -                               1,77,284.00                         22,27,445.00          35,55,008.83                    37,32,292.83                    

LATH MACHINE 4.75                  2,62,997.00                         -                                       2,62,997.00                         1,13,856.00                         -                               7,084.00                              1,20,940.00            1,42,057.00                      1,49,141.00                      

JET PUMP & SUMMERSIBILE 4.75                  13,739.52                            -                                       13,739.52                            6,435.00                              -                               347.00                                 6,782.00                6,957.52                           7,304.52                           

MOBILE 2018 4.75                  4,900.00                              -                                       4,900.00                              487.00                                 -                               210.00                                 697.00                   4,203.00                           4,413.00                           

MOULD HARDNESS TESTER 4.75                  47,087.08                            -                                       47,087.08                            22,063.00                            -                               1,189.00                              23,252.00               23,835.08                         25,024.08                         

Moulds & Patterns 4.75                  2,15,39,330.97                    11,72,288.00                        2,27,11,618.97                    61,31,924.71                       -                               7,64,194.30                         68,96,119.01          1,58,15,499.96                 1,54,07,406.26                 

SAND MIX MILLER 4.75                  6,35,218.00                         -                                       6,35,218.00                         1,91,295.00                         -                               21,087.00                            2,12,382.00            4,22,836.00                      4,43,923.00                      

TELEPHONE 4.75                  19,208.04                            -                                       19,208.04                            6,834.00                              -                               588.00                                 7,422.00                11,786.04                         12,374.04                         

TRANSFORMER 4.75                  16,55,853.33                       -                                       16,55,853.33                       6,96,307.00                         -                               45,579.00                            7,41,886.00            9,13,967.33                      9,59,546.33                      

TROLLEY 4.75                  70,816.84                            -                                       70,816.84                            33,181.00                            -                               1,788.00                              34,969.00               35,847.84                         37,635.84                         

COFFEE MACHINE 2011 4.75                  8,300.00                              -                                       8,300.00                              3,593.00                              -                               224.00                                 3,817.00                4,483.00                           4,707.00                           

COOLING TOWER 2011 4.75                  1,04,250.00                         -                                       1,04,250.00                         45,132.00                            -                               2,808.00                              47,940.00               56,310.00                         59,118.00                         

HEIGHT MEASURING MACHINE 2011 4.75                  91,985.40                            -                                       91,985.40                            39,821.00                            -                               2,478.00                              42,299.00               49,686.40                         52,164.40                         

INDUCTION FURNACE 2011 4.75                  31,16,264.88                       -                                       31,16,264.88                       13,49,086.00                       -                               83,941.00                            14,33,027.00          16,83,237.88                    17,67,178.88                    

EFFLUX 2012 4.75                  3,57,721.00                         -                                       3,57,721.00                         1,42,126.00                         -                               10,241.00                            1,52,367.00            2,05,354.00                      2,15,595.00                      

TOTAL 11,96,12,742.03               61,63,003.00                      12,57,75,745.03               3,21,96,876.30                 -                             33,46,580.09                    3,55,43,456.39    9,02,32,288.64              8,74,15,865.73              
Previous Year Figure 10,83,66,681.03                  1,12,46,061.00                     11,96,12,742.03                  2,91,65,740.00                    -                               30,31,136.30                       3,21,96,876.30       8,74,15,865.73                 7,92,00,941.03                 

PARTICULARS
GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
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Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements as on 31st March, 2022

Note 7: Share Capital

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2022  As at 31st March, 2021 

Equity Share Capital

Authorised

52,50,000 shares of par value of Rs. 10/- each 5,25,00,000.00                 5,25,00,000.00                    

5,25,00,000.00                5,25,00,000.00                   

 Issued ,Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital

51,45,290 shares of par value of Rs. 10/- each 5,14,52,900.00                 5,14,52,900.00                    

5,14,52,900.00                5,14,52,900.00                   

At the beginning of the year 51,45,290.00                    51,45,290.00                       

Isuued during the year -                                   -                                     

Outstanding at the end of the year 51,45,290.00                   51,45,290.00                      

b) Class & Par Value of Shares

c) Rights, Preferences & Restrictions of the Class of Share Holders

d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

 As at 31st March, 2022  As at 31st March, 2021                                       -   

 No. of shares   % Held  No. of shares      % Held  No. of shares      % Held 

 Pramod Kumar  737100           14.33% 737100           14.33% 737100           14.33%

 Ajay Kumar Agarwal 388500           7.55% 388500           7.55% 388500           7.55%

 Kamlesh Kumar 314213            6.11% 314213            6.11% 314213           6.11%

 Meenal Dadu 304500            5.92% 304500            5.92% 304500            5.92%

 Gaurav Agarwal 298725            5.81% 298725            5.81% 298725            5.81%

 Kanika Mittal  294000            5.71% 294000            5.71% 294000           5.71%

a) Reconciliation of the no. of equity shares outstanding as at the beginning and at the end of Reporting period.

 i) Each holder of equity is entitled to one vote per share and is entitiled to receive dividends as declared from  time to time. 

ii) In the event of Liquidation of the Company, the holder of equity share will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of 

the Company after distribution of the Preferential Payments.  However, no such  Preferential amounts exist currently, The 

distribution will be in proportion to number of equity share Held.

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of  Rs. 10 per share.

Name of Shareholders



Note  8 : Other Equity

 Total 

 Generator and Capital 

Subsidy 

 General Reserve   Securities 

Premium 

 Retained 

Earnings 

 Revaluation 

Surplus 

 Balance at the beginning of the previous reporting period                                     -                                          -                       10,05,000.00          1,07,264.39             47,100.00     24,39,806.47      2,71,85,728.00      3,07,84,898.86 

 Changes in accounting policy/prior period errors                                     -                                          -   

 Restated balance at the beginning of the previous reporting period                                     -                                          -                       10,05,000.00          1,07,264.39             47,100.00     24,39,806.47      2,71,85,728.00      3,07,84,898.86 

 Total Comprehensive Income for the previous year                                     -                                          -                                       -                          -                          -                       -                           -                           -   

 Dividends                                     -                                          -                                       -                          -                          -                       -                           -                           -   

 Transfer to retained earnings                                     -                                          -                                       -                          -                          -         9,64,073.94                         -            9,64,073.94 

 Provision for Tax                                     -                                          -                                       -                          -                          -          -25,490.00                         -              -25,490.00 

 Defferred Tax Provision                                     -                                          -                                       -                          -                          -       -4,42,026.17                         -           -4,42,026.17 

 Balance at the end of the current reporting period                                     -                                          -                       10,05,000.00          1,07,264.39             47,100.00     29,36,364.24      2,71,85,728.00      3,12,81,456.63 

 Total 

 Generator and Capital 

Subsidy 

 General Reserve   Securities 

Premium 

 Retained 

Earnings 

 Revaluation 

Surplus 

 Balance at the beginning of the previous reporting period                                     -                                          -                       10,05,000.00          1,07,264.39             47,100.00     75,46,967.96      2,71,85,728.00      3,58,92,060.35 

 Changes in accounting policy/prior period errors (Mat Credit W/o)                                     -                                          -                                       -                          -                          -      -19,10,673.71                         -         -19,10,673.71 

 Restated balance at the beginning of the previous reporting period                                     -                                          -                       10,05,000.00          1,07,264.39             47,100.00     56,36,294.25      2,71,85,728.00      3,39,81,386.64 

 Total Comprehensive Income for the previous year                                     -                                          -                                       -                          -                          -                       -                           -                           -   

 Dividends                                     -                                          -                                       -                          -                          -                       -                           -                           -   

 Transfer to retained earnings                                     -                                          -                          -      -27,98,713.67                         -         -27,98,713.67 

 Defferred Tax Provision                                     -                                          -                                       -                          -                          -       -3,97,774.11                         -           -3,97,774.11 

 Balance at the end of the previous reporting period                                     -                                          -                       10,05,000.00          1,07,264.39             47,100.00     24,39,806.47      2,71,85,728.00      3,07,84,898.86 

 (1) Current reporting period 

 Share application money 

pending allotment 

 Equity component of 

compound financial 

instruments 

 Reserves and Surplus 

 B. Other Equity 

 (2) Previous reporting period 

 Share application money 

pending allotment 

 Equity component of 

compound financial 

instruments 

 Reserves and Surplus 
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